From: Jeffery D Lang

Sent: Sunday, August 16, 2020 5:35 PM

To: Rian Rabideau;Kimberly Chestnut Steich
Cc Jennifer Dawn Chavez

Subject: Re: RLDS bed capacity for quarantine
Hi Rian,

If you would like you can send me an email with updates on the availability and | can update the spreadsheet. | don’t
have a good way of automating updates from Teams, and | am not opposed to sharing the document as long as we
clearly communicate what | should/shouldn’t be reporting on in the dashboard and how often. Let me know what

works best for you.
-Jeff

From: Rian Rabideau <rrabidea@uwyo.edu>

Date: Saturday, August 15, 2020 at 11:05 PM

To: Jeffery Lang <JEFFLANG@uwyo.edu>, Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>
Cc: Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: RLDS bed capacity for quarantine

Hi Jeff,

Is it possible to just let you know how many beds we have available? Or | can share our teams document with you that
indicates what these spaces are equipped with, what students are occupying them, who’s checking in with the student,

etc.
Availability now:

Honors House: 16 of 17 are available
Apartments: 10 out of 12 are available
Armory: 33 out of 33 available (opts still needs to clean the space, though)

Thanks,
Rian

From: Jeffery D Lang <JEFFLANG@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 2:55 PM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>; Rian Rabideau <rrabidea@uwyo.edu>
Subject: RE: RLDS bed capacity for quarantine

Thanks Kim.

Rian,

Would we be able to have someone update a spreadsheet for us that we can use to report on quarantine capacity? |
have attached a sample above, but if there is additional/different data we can try and accommodate. The idea would be
that we would provide access to a share for whom ever you identify and they would need to simply update the
spreadsheet in the share. Let me know your thoughts.

Sincerely,

Jeff
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From: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 1:03 PM

To: Jeffery D Lang <JEFFLANG @uwyo.edu>

Cc: Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@ uwyo.edu>; Rian Rabideau <rrabidea@uwyo.edu>
Subject: Re: RLDS bed capacity for quarantine

Jeff,
Rian Rabideau is our point person on tracking quarantine housing. He is cc’d here.

Thanks,
Kim

From: Jeffery D Lang <JEFFLANG@uwyo.edu>

Date: Thursday, August 13, 2020 at 12:57 PM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>
Cc: Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>
Subject: RLDS bed capacity for quarantine

Kim,

We are looking to provide metrics on a UW COVID dashboard (potentially public) on the number of available bed spaces
for quarantine. Is there someone | can work with to get this information and have them update the statistics on a
regular basis?

Thanks,

Jeff
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From: Brant Schumaker <theschu78@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, August 16, 2020 11:06 PM

To: Danika Roanne Salmans
Cc: Chad R. Baldwin‘_NycoIe Rae Courtney;Tara Evans;Tami B.

senham-Deal ;| G o Koczara}Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil Kimberly Chestnut

Steich;Mary Beth Bender;Jennifer Dawn Chavez
Subject: Re: COVID Dashboard SUN 8/16

# This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening
attachments from external sources.

You all have been busy! Thanks for all of your efforts!

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 16, 2020, at 9:59 PM, Danika Roanne Salmans <dsalmans@uwyo.edu> wrote:

Below is the Sunday 8/16 Update from the COVID HUB - From the last data pull of Vault data on
Satuday to mid-day Sunday Vault reported 26 new positives. Nycole and Danika performed contact
tracing today on these individuals which then resulted in an increase in individuals placed in 14-day
quarantine due to first degree exposure.

New cases today = 26 (Data was pulled from Vault up through 1:06pm on 8/16/2020)

e 26 Vault:
o 6 students in self isolation in other cities/states

o 6 Students in Laramie - off campus housing - no presence on campus
o 2were

[
o 2 employees -
®
®

o 1employee
®

o 4 were past positives so they were placed in "Recovered"
o 5 could not be reached

Active Cases =34
e 2 living on campus positive cases
o 32 living off campus positive cases
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4 employees

1 employee in
1 employee in
1 studentin
8 student in
1 student in
3 student in
1 student in
1 student in
2 student in
1 student in
1 student in
1 student in
1 student in
o 5 Unknown

Monitoring cases =0
14 Day Quarantine due to exposure to a positive = 34

e 10:0n Campus - 14 Day Quarantine

o 24 : Off Campus - 14 Day Quarantine
Recovered from COVID Positive = 12

e 12 :Recovered COVID Positive Cases
Released from 14 Day Quarantine/Monitoring

e 3 :Released from 14 Day Quarantine/Monitoring
TOTAL COVID Cases = Current cases + Recovered Cases = 46

0O 0O 0 0 0O 0O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL Tests Run by Vault = 8,260
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From: Amy E. Morgan

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 7:00 AM
To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich
Subject: RE: End of week check-in 8.14.2020

Good morning Kim,

| just wanted to let you know how much | appreciate your updates. They are informative as well as “comforting” that
things are being handled.

My best to you in these difficult times — your hard work does not go unnoticed.
Amy

Amy Morgan

Office Associate and Scholarship Administrator
UW Alumni Association

Marian H. Rochelle Gateway Center

222 S. 22nd St., Laramie, WY 82070

Office: (307) 766-4166

uwyo.edu/alumni

From: student-affairs-l@uwyo.edu <student-affairs-l@uwyo.edu> On Behalf Of Kimberly Chestnut Steich
Sent: Friday, August 14, 2020 4:39 PM

To: student-affairs-|@uwyo.edu

Subject: End of week check-in 8.14.2020

Student Affairs,
| wanted to check in today after a challenging and dynamic week here at UW. | know that many of us returned to

campus this past Monday as buildings reopened and we prepared to welcome our students back to campus next week.
That plan notably shifted on Wednesday with the decision to implement a 4 phase return approach to fall operations. A
plan adjustment was required because the ongoing campus-wide testing plan cannot start August 24" as initially
planned. There have been significant supply chain issues in getting the necessary equipment to campus.

It is difficult to hear about and to make adjustments quickly to such significant changes. | offer that to acknowledge the
challenge and discomfort it creates, and to thank you for being so responsive. Student Affairs continues to rise to the
occasion and keep our commitment to our students and mission front and center. Thank you.

Here is a list of notable changes made this week:
- UW will start a bridge testing program 8.24,2020 until late September. Faculty, staff, and students who continue
to live and work on campus will be part of a weekly, or twice weekly, random sampling testing process. More

information on details by end of next week.
- The first two weeks of classes will be online for all students. Cowboy Connect continues as planned, for the most

part, because our students are still starting class on the 24,
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First-year student move-in to the residence halls has been changed to the weekend of September 5" and

6™, First-year seminar classes that were scheduled to meet face-to-face will begin in-person classes on
September 7t

An exception process is in place for students who are not able to modify their move-in date.

All students currently living with us are welcome to stay. Housing and Dining are being wonderfully adaptable!
September 28" is when all students will be welcomed back to campus for in-person instruction, and more in-

person program offerings.

For note:

Please check with your supervisor regarding any changes regarding working remotely. Many of us will still be on
campus daily and therefore will participate in the bridge testing program.

Student Affairs will continue to offer our comprehensive services, some of which is in-person and others remote.
Many of our departments can plan to operate as we intended for the start of the semester beginning September
7' as there will be 1,000+ students on campus.

The whole world continues to figure out new ways to operate in the midst of COVID-19. | anticipate there will be more
changes. As such, | will provide a weekly email with updates — more often if needed. UW also plans to provide more
regular communication to campus regarding status updates.

| have such appreciation for the great work so many of you are doing to keep the train on the tracks. | need you and am
thankful for your help. Please take some time this weekend to rest and relax. Let me know if there are questions or
concerns.

Take care,

Kim

Kimberly Chestnut, Ph.D.
Vice President for Student Affairs

University of Wyoming

Old Main 408

Laramie, WY 82071-2000
Main Office 307-766-5123
k.chestnut@uwyo.edu
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From: Chad R. Baldwin

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 9:18 AM

To: Tami B. Benham-Deal

Cc: Kimberly Chestnut Steich;Nycole Rae Courtney;Michael R Yates;Megan E Cluver
Subject: new numbers

Attachments: covid.dashboard.8.17.docx

Tami and all:

Attached is a draft message about the latest COVID numbers. | think it needs to be sent to campus — and the online
dashboard needs to be updated -- before noon today.

| welcome your input/guidance.
Thanks.

Chad Baldwin
Associate Vice President for Marketing and Communications

University of Wyoming

Laramie, WY 82070

Main Office 307-766-2929
Direct 307-766-2929
Mobile 307-258-0307

Fax 307-766-6729
cbaldwin@uwyo.edu
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Testing Finds New Positive Cases Over Weekend

August 17, 2020 — There are 34 active cases of COVID-19 among University of
Wyoming students and employees.

Two of those involve students who were living in UW’s residence halls; they have
been moved to isolation housing. The other 32 cases involve students and
employees living off campus, most in communities outside Laramie.

Eight people who had contact with the two students in the residence halls are now
in quarantine housing for 14 days.

Reporting from pre-return Vault Health tests showed 26 new positive cases over
the weekend, as a total of 8,260 tests have been processed by Vault. Here is the
breakdown of the new cases, in addition to the two students in the residence halls:

-- Six are students self-isolating in other cities and states -- Casper, Riverton,
Sheridan, Colorado, New Jersey and South Dakota.

-- Six are students in Laramie in off-campus housing who’ve had no presence on
campus.

-- Two are UW employees in Laramie at the Wyoming State Veterinary
Laboratory, now isolating at home.

-- One is a UW employee at the Family Medicine Residency Program in Casper,
now isolating at home.

-- Four were “past positives” who have recovered.
-- Five are individuals the university is attempting to contact.

The total of UW-related COVID-19 cases since the pandemic began is 46; 12 of
the individuals have recovered.

A COVID-19 dashboard may be found at www.uwvo.edu/campus-return.

In Albany County, 85 total cases have been reported as of Aug. 16.



From: Steven Frank Barrett

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 9:37 AM

To: Michael Shawn McGee;Anne M. Alexander;Jonathan P Curtis;Tara Evans
Ce: Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Subject: Re: Army ROTC Basic Week

Michael,

I am at an offsite meeting with Anne. She indicated they should stay in a hotel until test results are
available. She is sorry for the inconvenience. Please get the family’s names and ask them for hotel receipts and
Anne indicated she would cover for them.

Steven
Get Qutlook for i0S

From: Michael Shawn McGee <mmcgeel@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 9:21:59 AM

To: Anne M. Alexander <AAlex@uwyo.edu>; Steven Frank Barrett <SteveB@uwyo.edu>; Jonathan P Curtis
<jcurtil8 @uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans <tevans15@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: Army ROTC Basic Week

Anne-
Need your help. Students are trying to move in and are now being told they cannot until they have their COVID results

back. We have students who completed and mailed in their tests and still have not received results and are being
turned away. Many have traveled from out of state and are now irate. Also, per your email, we have sent people who
still have not received their tests to student health to take one, but they are being told that they still cannot move in
until they have their results are returned in several days. Parents are asking for clear direction and answers and we are
unable to get anyone on the phone who can give it. Appreciate your help.

Michael S. McGee

MAJ, EN, WYARNG

Executive Officer

University of Wyoming Army ROTC
Office: -3308

Fax: (307) 766-3383

"Courage is being scared to death... and saddling up anyway"
John Wayne

From: Anne M. Alexander

Sent: Friday, August 14, 2020 8:19 AM

To: Steven Frank Barrett <SteveB@uwyo.edu>; Jonathan P Curtis <jcurtil8 @uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevans15@uwyo.edu>; Michael Shawn McGee <mmcgeel@uwyo.edu>

Subject: Re: Army ROTC Basic Week

All, if your students can do a test with local urgent care or our Student Health here and have results by M or T
you should be good to go to move in and start training. Tara can correct my quick note if needed.

Anne

Sent from the Rocky Mountains
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From: Michael Shawn McGee <mmcgeel @uwyo.edu>

Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 1:11:03 PM

To: Steven Frank Barrett <SteveB@uwyo.edu>; Jonathan P Curtis <jcurtil8 @uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevansl5@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Anne M. Alexander <AAlex@ uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: Army ROTC Basic Week

All-
During phase Il we would be doing our PT sessions outdoors from 0545-0700 MWF. We will be following the guidelines

of groups no bigger than 15 while exercising. In addition, we will have our outdoor labs on Wednesdays from 1500-
1700. The students will be completely social distanced and masks enforced during those labs. Our normal classes
during the week are the only other events we have and we would like to do those in person, but can easily switch to
online if needed during Phase Il.

Michael S. McGee
MAJ, EN, WYARNG
Executive Officer

University of Wyoming Army ROTC
Office: (307) 766-3398

_Fax: (307) 766-3383

"Courage is being scared to death... and saddling up anyway"
John Wayne

From: Steven Frank Barrett

Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 12:02 PM

To: Michael Shawn McGee <mmcgeel @uwyo.edu>; Jonathan P Curtis <jcurtil8 @uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevansl5@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Anne M. Alexander <AAlex@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: Army ROTC Basic Week

Michael,
Could you please include information through Phase II?

I’'ve provided the definitions below.
Thank you sir,

Steven

Extracted from D. Bagley e-mail:
http://www.uwyo.edw/uw/news/2020/08/uw-revises-plan-for-fall-semester.-moves-to-phased-return-to-

campus.html

1. This change is due to limitations in surveillance testing capacity. The supply chain to get the materials is
backed up and there will not be sufficient surveillance testing capacity to ensure safe operation by August 24.
Basically, President Seidel did not want to bring people into an environment where we would not be able to
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appropriately track infections. I am sure President Seidel will say more about this at the Town Hall tomorrow
(Thursday August 13). The Board of Trustees has approved this change.

2. All instruction from August 24 to September 7 will be online. For those of us who were planning to teach
face-to-face (and that includes me!), we must start out online. Please let me and your department head know if

this poses a problem so we can help you work to resolve it.

3. Everybody who can, shall work remotely between August 24 to September 7 (Phase 1). Yep, this is just like
in the spring but with one key difference: anybody who must work on campus and cannot isolate while on
campus will be part of the Phase 1 surveillance testing. Your departments have prepared plans for this
possibility - those plans are now in effect.

4. From September 7 to September 28 (Phase II), the University will begin face-to-face instruction for a very
limited number of courses. At this time, those courses will probably be the First Year Seminar courses that were
scheduled to be face-to-face (which was most of them). So if you are teaching a face-to-face First Year Seminar
course, you will be receiving more details. The rest of the College's instruction will stay on-line until September
28. Also, everybody who was working remotely in Phase 1 shall keep working remotely during Phase 2.

5. From September 28 to November 23 (Phase 3) everyone who was scheduled to teach face-to-face will move
to that mode, following the same procedures as were originally scheduled for August 24. Everybody who can
continue to work remotely, however, should plan to continue to do so, although the campus will be officially
open again. (And yes, that implies that the campus will undergo closure again prior to that. The details of that
closure are still being sorted out.)

6. From November 23 on (Phase 4), things are the same as was originally planned - all instruction moves back
online but the campus will still be open (assuming this all works as planned!)

From: Michael Shawn McGee

Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 11:58 AM

To: Steven Frank Barrett <SteveB@uwyo.edu>; Jonathan P Curtis <jcurtil8@uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevansl5@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Anne M. Alexander <AAlex@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: Army ROTC Basic Week

All-
Here is our schedule of events with locations on it.

Michael S. McGee

MAJ, EN, WYARNG

Executive Officer

University of Wyoming Army ROTC
Office: (307) 766-3398

ax:

"Courage is being scared to death... and saddling up anyway'
John Wayne

From: Steven Frank Barrett
Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 11:48 AM
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To: Michael Shawn McGee <mmcgeel@uwyo.edu>; Jonathan P Curtis <jcurtil8@uwyo.edu>
Subject: FW: Army ROTC Basic Week

Gentlemen,
Follow up questions...

Thank you,

Steven

From: Tara Evans

Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 11:47 AM
To: Steven Frank Barrett <SteveB@uwyo.edu>
Cc: Anne M. Alexander <AAlex@uwyo.edu>
Subject: RE: Army ROTC Basic Week

Thanks, Steve! Can you clarify where the training will take place and what times. Also, we need their training schedule
through phase2 as well.

From: Steven Frank Barrett <SteveB@uwyo.edu>
Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 11:44 AM

To: Tara Evans <tevansl5@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Anne M. Alexander <AAlex@uwyo.edu>
Subject: FW: Army ROTC Basic Week

Tara,
Here is the information you requested on Army ROTC.

| will provide AFROTC as soon as it is available.
Thank you for all you are doing!

Steven

From: Michael Shawn McGee

Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 11:36 AM
To: Steven Frank Barrett <SteveB@uwyo.edu>
Cc: Jonathan P Curtis <jcurtil8 @uwyo.edu>
Subject: Army ROTC Basic Week

Steven-
As per our discussion. Our Basic Week activities next week will be 17-21 Aug and will have the cadets split into 5 groups

of 25 or less at all times. We will have the cadets stay in place whenever possible and have the cadre rotate to complete
required training. This week will include our Cadet Command required trainings of Equal Opportunity, Sexual
Harassment and Assault Response and Prevention training, uniform issue, administrative inprocessing, Cadet Command
scholarship packet completion, and other small requirements. At all times social distancing will be practiced and mask

use will be enforced.

Michael S. McGee

MAJ, EN, WYARNG

Executive Officer

University of Wyoming Army ROTC
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Office: |307| 766-3398

Fax: (307) 766-3383

"Courage is being scared to death... and saddling up anyway"
John Wayne
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From: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 9:46 AM

To:

Cc: Jennifer Dawn Chavez_KimberIy Chestnut Steich;Nycole Rae Courtney
Subject: Re: Distant Learning Students

Hello-

Thank you for reaching out. The Office of the Registrar could likely provide you that list — or perhaps IT. | will not that
we have been telling everyone for the past week that testing exceptions need to follow the COVID Policy Exemption
process. As such we have had about 20 exemptions issued so far. However, our initial guidance from General Counsel

on this was for anyone living out of state.

| would appreciate an update and clarification on these pieces as we are fielding so many questions about this. Added
Kim and Nycole in so they are aware of these potential changes.

Thank you,

Ryan Dinneen O’Neil

Dean of Students & Associate Vice President of Student Affairs
Dean of Students Office

University of Wyoming

1000 E. University Ave., Laramie WY 82071-2000 (mail)

Knight Hall, Rm 128

(307)766-3296 * (307) 766-3298 (fax)

ryan.oneil@uwyo.edu

Confidentiality Notice
The information contained in this e-mail message or in any attachments may be legally privileged and/or confidential. If you are

not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this e-mail message or any
attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender and permanently delete the e-
mail message and any attachments immediately. You should not retain, copy, use or disclose to any other person any part of this
e-mail message or of any attachments for any purpose. Any metadata contained in any attachment was sent inadvertently and

should not be examined.

From
Date: Monday, August 17, 2020 at 7:20 AM
To: "ryan.oneil@uwyo.edu" <Ryan.Oneil@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>,—

Subject: Distant Learning Students

4 This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments
from external sources.

Hi Ryan,
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| hope you had a nice weekend! Unsure if you are the correct person for this request, but we are looking for a list of all
distant learning students, would you happen to have this list or know someone who would? It was decided in last week’s
testing working group that distant learners who do not live in Albany County do not need to complete the Vault Pre-

return test.

Please let me know if you have questions.
Thanks!

This message (including any attachments) contains confidential information intended for a specific individual
and purpose, and is protected by law. If you are not the intended recipient, you should delete this message and
any disclosure, copying, or distribution of this message, or the taking of any action based on it, by you is strictly

prohibited.

Deloitte refers to a Deloitte member firm, one of its related entities, or Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
("DTTL"). Each Deloitte member firm is a separate legal entity and a member of DTTL. DTTL does not
provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more.

v.E.1
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From: Michelle Marie Sullivan

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 1:19 PM

To: Mandy Jane Gifford

Cc Kimberly Chestnut Steich;Anne M. Alexander
Subject: RE: Academic & Student Affairs call on the 19th?

Hi Mandy, Let’s plan on putting the CoVid Academic Update and Online working group update on our list for this
week. We'll save posthumous degree procedure for next time - Thanks. M

From: Mandy Jane Gifford <MANDYJ@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 11:06 AM

To: Michelle Marie Sullivan <Michelle.Sullivan@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>; Anne M. Alexander <AAlex@uwyo.edu>
Subject: Re: Academic & Student Affairs call on the 19th?

Hi Trustee Sullivan,

We have a few topics to choose from for AA, but Anne can guide on priority for this week so that there is time for
anything Kim would like to add.

-COVID-Academic update (new polices related to COVID)
-Online Program Working Group update
-Posthumous degree procedure

Best,
Mandy Gifford

Executive Assistant to the Vice President and Provost
Office of Academic Affairs

University of Wyoming

318 Old Main

Laramie, WY 82071

Direct 307-766-6476

mandyj@uwyo.edu « uwyo.edu/acadaffairs/

On Aug 17, 2020, at 8:39 AM, Michelle Marie Sullivan <Michelle.Sullivan@uwyo.edu> wrote:

Good morning Ladies,

I am checking in about our call on Wednesday to confirm and inquire about topics - I'd like to make
sure we get an agenda and information out today. Thanks. M
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From: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O‘Neil

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:55 PM

To: Jennifer Dawn Chavez

Cc: Carl A. Mehta;Courtney Leigh Thomson-Lichty;Kimberly Chestnut Steich
Subject: Re: Students needing to complete COVID Training

Thank you! We have got 50+ emails in the last hour with questions! At least we know people are

reading their emails.
Ryan

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:32:19 PM

To: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil <Ryan.Oneil@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Carl A. Mehta <CMEHTA@uwyo.edu>; Courtney Leigh Thomson-Lichty <Courtney.ThomsonLichty@uwyo.edu>;

Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>
Subject: RE: Students needing to complete COVID Training

These have been sent.

From: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil <Ryan.Oneil@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 3:44 PM

To: Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Carl A. Mehta <CMEHTA@uwyo.edu>; Courtney Leigh Thomson-Lichty <Courtney.ThomsonLichty@uwyo.edu>;
Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Subject: FW: Students needing to complete COVID Training

Jenn,

Our conduct coordinator, Carl Mehta, pulled the list of students who have not completed the training (8500+) — see
sharepoint link below in Carl’s email for list, user names are under the second tab as canvas does not provide emails.

Here is a draft for a reminder email to go out as soon as we can. Let us know what questions you have. Thank you!
Subject: Student COVID Policy Training

Our records indicate you have not yet completed the student training for the University’s COVID policy. This
training must be completed by Wednesday, August 19. The training covers the university policy, best practice
public health information and resources for students. Please refer to the training email you received on
August 6 or check your WyoCourses for the Return to Campus training course. The full training should take 25

— 30 minutes to complete.
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Account holds will be placed for those students who do not complete the training. Please
email dos@uwyo.edu or call 307.766.3296 if you have questions about the training requirement.

Thank you,

Ryan Dinneen O’Neil

Dean of Students & Associate Vice President of Student Affairs
Dean of Students Office

University of Wyoming

(307)766-3296 dos@uwyo.edu

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

From: "Carl A. Mehta" <CMEHTA@uwyo.edu>

Date: Monday, August 17, 2020 at 1:11 PM

To: "ryan.oneil@uwyo.edu" <Ryan.Oneil@uwyo.edu>
Subject: Students needing to complete COVID Training

https://uwy-

Carl Mehta
Student Conduct Coordinator
Dean of Students Office

University of Wyoming
118 Knight Hall

Laramie, WY 82071

Main Office 307-766-3296

cmel wyo.edu » hitps://iwww.uwyo.edu/dos/
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Pronouns; he, him, his
Schedule a meetlnq with me

=
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From: Matthew J. Whisenant

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 9:05 PM

To: Tami B. Benham-Deal

Ce: Robert Aylward;Kimberly Chestnut Steich;Mary Beth Bender;Matthew E. Boyer;Tara Evans;Jennifer Dawn Chavez
Subject: Re: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing (Athletics)

Thanks Tami {(and everyone). We'll figure something out.

By the way, what happens if a student does not complete the COVIDPass? Are there “repercussions?” Also, you said no
one tracks the data - so what happens when a student/staff member says they have a symptom? Does that flag Student
Health? Sorry for all the questions - | just don’t know how the process works.

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 17, 2020, at 8:50 PM, Tami B. Benham-Deal <Benham@uwyo.edu> wrote:

Matt,

As per the Fall Return Plan that was approved by the Board, the COVID Pass will not track data, location,
personally identifiable information or medically sensitive information. So, at this point, without a
modification to the return plan, | don’t believe we would be able to provide you with the data. You
could, of course, require your student athlete’s to show you their daily screen that shows they received
their pass to be on campus.

Tami Benham Deal, PED

Vice Provost

Office of Academic Affairs

1000 E. University Ave.

Laramie, WY 82071

307-766-4284
http://www.uwyo.edu/acadaffairs/

<image001.jpg>

From: Matthew J. Whisenant <MWhise@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 8:01 PM

To: Robert Aylward <RAylward@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>; Mary Beth Bender <mbender4@uwyo.edu>;
Matthew E. Boyer <mboyer4@uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans <tevans1S@uwyo.edu>; Jennifer Dawn Chavez
<Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>; Tami B. Benham-Deal <Benham@uwyo.edu>

Subject: Re: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing (Athletics)

Robert,

Preferably we would have access to both so we can ensure they (the student-athletes) completed it. We
would like to be able to verify the info (daily) before we allow them to practice, lift, use sports
medicine, eat in the training table, etc.

374



Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 17, 2020, at 7:37 PM, Robert Aylward <RAylward@uwyo.edu> wrote:

Can we put this on the EEPG agenda for Wednesday?

Matt, is it important to know those who have passed for the day or just those that have
failed?

- Robert

From: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:06 PM

To: Mary Beth Bender <mbenderd@uwyo.edu>; Matthew J. Whisenant
<MWhise@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Matthew E. Boyer <mboyerd @uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevansl5@uwyo.edu>; Robert Aylward <RAylward @uwyo.edu>; Jennifer
Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>; Tami B. Benham-Deal
<Benham@uwyo.edu>

Subject: Re: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing

I will offer that specific name and results lists were not the goal of this tool, it is
designed as an anonymous personal practice. However you have a need that |
am not sure we anticipated. | am not sure if this request is an option or not.

From: Mary Beth Bender <mbender4 @uwyo.edu>

Date: Monday, August 17, 2020 at 3:03 PM

To: "Matthew J. Whisenant" <MWhise @uwyo.edu>, Kimberly Chestnut
Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Cc: "Matthew E. Boyer" <mboyer4@uwyo.edu>, Tara Evans
<tevansl5@uwyo.edu>, Robert Aylward <RAylward@uwyo.edu>,
Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing

I’m looping Robert Aylward and Jen Chavez on that part...

Mawy Betiv Bender, MS, APRN, FNP-C

Director & Primary Care Nurse Practitioner
University of Wyoming Student Health Service
307.766.2130 (phone)

307.766.2711 (fax)
http://www.uwyo.edu/sher

Pronouns: she/her/hers
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If you are a UW student and need to communicate with me about personal
medical concerns or questions, please contact me through the secure patient
portal: http://patientportal.uwyo.edu

THIS E-MAIL, INCLUDING ANY ATTACHMENTS, IS FOR THE SOLE USE OF THE
INTENDED RECIPIENT AND MAY CONTAIN CONFIDENTIAL AND PRIVILEGED
INFORMATION. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REVIEW, USE, DISCLOSURE, OR
DISTRIBUTION IS PROHIBITED. IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT,
PLEASE CONTACT THE SENDER BY E-MAIL AND DESTROY ALL COPIES OF THE
ORIGINAL MESSAGE.

From: Matthew J. Whisenant <MWhise@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 2:49 PM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>; Mary Beth Bender
<mbender4 @uwyo.edu>

Cc: Matthew E. Boyer <mboyerd @uwyo.edus; Tara Evans
<tevans1l5@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing

Quick follow-up — would we (or could we) have access to this info for our
student-athletes? More specifically, could our Sports medicine staff (Dr. Boyer
and athletic trainers) have access to this info. Each our athletic trainers works
with a respective team/s so they typically coordinate all medical-related matters
for “their” respective student-athletes. Big picture, if possible, we would have our
athletic trainers check the info for “their” respective student-athletes each day.

Matt Whisenant

Deputy Director of Athletics

University of Wyoming Athletics

1000 E. University Avenue | Laramie, Wyoming 82071

Phone: (307) 766-5551 | Cell: (307) 760-9050 | Fax: (307) 766-
5414 I mwhise@uwyo.edu

http://www.gowyo.com/

<image001.png>

From: Matthew J. Whisenant

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 2:27 PM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>; Mary Beth Bender
<mbender4 @uwyo.edu>

Cc: Matthew E. Boyer <mboyerd@uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevansl5@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing

Thanks. If it’s up and running by next Monday that would work for us.
Obviously the sooner the better but again, we can make that (8/24 start date)
work.

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
5414 l mwhise@uwyo.edu
hitp://www.gowyo.com/
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From: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 2:21 PM

To: Mary Beth Bender <mbender4 @uwyo.edu>; Matthew J. Whisenant
<MWhise@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Matthew E. Boyer <mboverd @uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevans1S@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing

Yes, | am with the understanding that it will be operational the 24%. But could
be earlier if needed, we just wanted to send a communication to campus this
week with that notice.

From: Mary Beth Bender <mbenderd @uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 2:19 PM

To: Matthew J. Whisenant <M Whise @uwyo.edu>; Kimberly Chestnut Steich
<k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Matthew E. Boyer <mboyer4d @uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevans1l5@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing

I’m in @ meeting right now with Robert Aylward...he’s telling me they could
potentially have it running as soon as Monday. How soon do you guys need that
process in place?

Mawy Beth Bender, MS, APRN, FNP-C

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
PLEASE CONTACT THE SENDER BY E-MAIL AND DESTRQOY ALL COPIES OF THE
ORIGINAL MESSAGE.
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From: Matthew J. Whisenant <MWhise @uwyo.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 11:43 AM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>; Mary Beth Bender
<mbender4 @uwyo.edu>

Cc: Matthew E. Boyer <mbovyerd @ uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans
<tevansl5@uwyo.edu>

Subject: COVIDPass Health Screening - Timing

Kim/Mary,

Do either of you have an update on when COVIDPass will be up and running? I
apologize if this email should be sent to someone else but I figured I would start
with you both (since you both are highly involved in driving campus COVID
policies/procedures). Please let me know. Thank you.

**The reason I'm asking is that the NCAA requires student-athletes/Athletic
Dept. personnel to complete a similar process (“daily self-health check”). There
are numerous Apps/sofiware packages out there that would meet this
requirement but we would rather use the same process as students/campus
personnel. However, if the COVIDPass system won’t be ready until later this
semester we may have to use another process in the short term.

Matt Whisenant

Deputy Director of Athletics

University of Wyoming Athletics

1000 E. University Avenue I Laramie, Wyoming 82071

Phone: (307) 766-5551 | Cell: (307) 760-9050 | Fax: (307) 766-
5414 I mwh wyo.edu

http://www.gowyo.com/

<image001.png>

378



From: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil

Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 10:30 PM
To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich
Subject: Fwd: The Gardens

Can we clarify what space David means by the gardens? Doe she mean the restaurant area or the full lower
area? If he means the full space it feels like a big ask and is very public. What will be the cleaning needs? We
eliminate dining and hang out - frankly for the fu lower level since people will not want to be in that space. Let
me know how I can help us address this to get clarity.

Get Outlook for i0S

From: David L Jones <DLlones@uwyo.edu>
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 10:27:23 PM
To: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil <Ryan.Oneil@uwyo.edu>; Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Will Laegreid <wlaegrei@uwyo.edu>
Subject: The Gardens

Hi Ryan and Kim,

| just wanted to confirm that the COVID Surveillance Group is moving forward with using The Union Gardens
as a testing site. This space is optimal for a number of reasons. | want to lay out how this will work:

Phase 1 (8/24-9/4): We will be doing only 414 tests per day. Personnel from VAULT will be overseeing the
testing for week 1. The UW will have oversight for week 2 and onward. For Phase 1, we will not need too

much space.
Phase 2 (9/7-9/25): We will probably be doing about 720 tests per day, so the number of stations will increase

to about 10.

Phase 3: We will be doing up to about 5400 tests on campus per day. We will have approximately 10 stations
at Crane cafeteria, 14 in The Gardens, and several at other locations. This will be the set up for the remainder
of the semester (or until we have to shut down).

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks.

Regards,

David
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From:

Sent: Tuesday, Auqust 18, 2020 7:44 AM

To: ﬂ

Cc: Mandy Jane Gifford;Tami B. Benham-Deal;Tara Evans;Chad R. Baldwin:Kim teich;Courtney Leigh
Thomson-Lichty;Danika Roanne Salmans;William H. Mai,‘mnne M. AlexanderEdmund
J. Synakowski;Robert Aylward;Thomas K. Burman;Tom Koczara;Emily Ann Monago;Ben Blalock;Mary Beth Bender;Neil

Subject: EEPG Agenda

Attachments: UW._Visitor Policy_Draft for EEPG Review_08.17.20.docx; UW_Transportation Policy EEPG Reviewed and Updated_
8-17-20.docx

# This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments
from external sources.

Good morning!
Quick agenda for this morning’s EEPG meeting:

1. Daily Recap
2. Testing:
e Baseline testing update
o Instructions around baseline testing
¢ Sampling testing update
o 2,000 tests next week (will cover 90% of the students on campus, tested by VAULT
personnel)
o Testing to take place in the union
o Working to gather names of students, faculty and staff on campus (necessary for scheduling)
o Souring additional testing options for weeks 3-5 of sample testing
e Surveillance testing
o Tracking to September 25t
3. COVID Policy:
1. Updated Transportation Policy
2. Visitor Policy for Review
3. Attendance Policy (TBD)
4. Required Decisions:
4. Quarantine Housing (decided)
5. Transportation for COVID positive students?
6. Testing Non-UW Employees?
7. Course Modalities under Phased Return?
5. Working Group Status Report

Kind regards,
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
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Updated 8/17/20

Visitor Policy

While on University-owned property or when conducting University business or activities, including
instruction and research, visitors must observe the same health and safety requirements as students,
faculty and staff, with the following exceptions:

e Visitors will not be required to utilize the COVID Pass for daily health screenings but should
avoid coming onto campus if experiencing possible COVID symptoms, per CDC guidance.

e Visitors will not be required to complete a COVID-19 test, unless instructed otherwise by the
University due to an extended visit.

In coming onto University-owned property and participating in University business or activities,
including instruction and research, visitors acknowledge that there are risks related to exposure to
COVID-19. Should visitors choose not to abide by University COVID Policy while on campus, they will not
be permitted to participate in work, events, activities, research or other engagements and will be asked
to leave campus. To further safeguard the UW community, additional guidance is provided below.

General Guidelines

The following protocols apply to personal visitors, business and community partners (including but not
limited to vendors, contractors, and suppliers):

o Make an appointment and coordinate all arrangements with your UW point of contact.
o During limited operations, informal and casual visits are not permitted.
e Bring your own face covering and hand sanitizer.
e Follow university staff instructions while on campus.
e Adhere to the guidelines established by OSHA and the CDC, as updated, and all other federal
and state regulations and guidelines to prevent and control the spread of COVID-19.

UW expects all visitors to abide by the same preventive guidelines we have established for our
employees and students in the COVID Policy, including:

Do not come to campus if you are sick.

Wear a face covering.

Maintain social distancing.

Minimize contact with shared surfaces.

Wash vour hands often with soap and water for at least 20 seconds. If soap and water are not
available, use hand sanitizer.

Avoid touching your eyes, nose, and mouth with unwashed hands.

e Asrecommended by the CDC, everyone must cover coughs and sneezes with a tissue or use the
inside of their elbow. Used tissues should be thrown in the trash and hands washed immediately
with soap and water for at least 20 seconds or use of hand sanitizer when necessary.

® o 8 o o

Learn more about how to protect yourself and others on the CDC website.

Disclaimer: The University of Wyoming COVID Policy, including this Visitor Policy, is informed by health and safety 1
recommendations from the CDC and the Wyoming Department of Health. The COVID Policy may be modified based
on the evolving environment and virus transmission. Please refer to this document regularly.



Updated 8/17/20

Visitors: Students

Off-campus students, family members or other friends are not allowed to visit residence hall or house
communities during the Fall 2020 semester, including overnight (this excludes opening and move-in).
For in-hall/house guests, the overnight guest policy is to be followed (no more than three nights in a 14-
day period).

In addition to our standard guest policy outlined in the RLDS Policies & Procedures, residents are
allowed to have guests that also reside in their same community. Residents are not allowed to visit
other hall or house communities.

Move-in: Visitors

Residents are allowed up to 2 guests to assist them in moving in.
e All must wear face masks and comply with safety protocols.
e Only 2 people in elevators at one time.
e Limited entrances will be used to enter the halls, monitored by staff. Residents and guests may
exit out of any door.

Residential Dining

Use of the campus dining hall by outside patrons will be limited to guest passes provided to residential
diners. UW will restrict visitors from entering communal spaces and dining halls.

Prospective Students (Campus Tours)

Visitors touring campus should receive communication of the University COVID Policy at the time of
their campus tour appointment confirmation. Campus tour visitors are expected to abide by the rules of

the COVID Policy while on campus.

Visitors: Faculty, Staff, and Scholars

Visiting scholars, principal investigators, researchers, or human research participants should be
approved in advance by the VP for Research and Economic Development. Visitors will be expected to
fully abide by the visitor guidelines as outlined in UW’s COVID-19 Policy. Visiting lecture guests and
others who will be on campus for more than 1 week will need to get tested prior to arrival on campus.
The COVID-19 Policy should be shared with all visitors in advance of their arrival to Campus. Specific
questions related to Research visitors

Visitors: Other

Other visitors to campus, such as contractors and third-party vendors, will be expected to fully abide by
the same preventive guidelines we have established for our employees and students in the COVID Policy
and as described above.

As a condition for access to the UW campus or facilities, contractors should have and share their own
COVID-19 risk mitigation policies and procedures. The COVID Policy should be shared with all
contractors in advance of their arrival to campus.

Disclaimer: The University of Wyoming COVID Policy, including this Visitor Policy, is informed by health and safety 2
recommendations from the CDC and the Wyoming Department of Health. The COVID Policy may be modified based
on the evolving environment and virus transmission. Please refer to this document regularly.



Last Updated: 8/17/20

Transportation Policy

Students, faculty and staff are encouraged to minimize travel and the use of vehicle
transportation, including personal travel and for use in University-sponsored travel such as:

o Field research

e Operations service activities

e Housing, dining and catering activities
¢ University vehicle services

All travel should adhere to the travel guidelines outlined in the University’s COVID Policy, which
is available online at the Campus Return page.

Per CDC guidance, people who are sick or have recently had a close contact (closer than 6 feet
for at least 15 minutes) to a person with COVID-19 should not use public transportation and
should stay home except to seek medical care. Individuals who have an increased risk of severe
iliness from COVID-19 should limit their travel.

However, when using any type of transportation, please follow the guidelines below which are
informed by CDC and Wyoming Department of Health guidance:

Practice hand hygiene and respiratory etiquette.

o Before you leave, wash your hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds or use
hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol.

e Once you reach your destination, wash your hands again with soap and water for at
least 20 seconds or use hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol as soon as possible upon
arrival.

+ Avoid touching your eyes, nose, and mouth with unwashed hands.

e Cover your coughs and sneezes with a tissue or use the inside of your elbow. Throw
used tissues in the trash and wash your hands immediately with soap and water for at
least 20 seconds or use hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol.

Practice social distancing.

e Where practical, avoid pooled rides or rides where multiple passengers are picked up
who are not in the same household. When you do share rides, keep in mind that time
matters: a 10-minute shared car ride carries less risk of transmission than a multi-hour
shared ride.

e During travel, try to keep at least 6 feet (1.8 meters) from people who are not in your
household. In cases when it is not possible to maintain the proper social distance, all
passengers will be required to wear face coverings.

Disclaimer: The University of Wyoming COVID Policy, including this Transportation Policy, is informed by health and 1
safety recommendations from the CDC and the Wyoming Department of Health. The COVID Policy may be modified
based on the evolving environment and virus transmission. Please refer to this document regularly.



Last Updated: 8/17/20

e Passenger capacity will be limited in vehicles to 1 person per vehicle row, with an
exception for trips less than 10 minutes and those who are in the same household as
long as all passengers are wearing face coverings and practicing proper hygiene / hand-
washing.

o Passengers should stagger seating and spread out as far as possible in the vehicle to
maintain proper distancing.

o Examples of reduced passenger capacities by vehicle type:

o Sedan - 2 person capacity (1 driver and 1 passenger)

Crossover/SUV 2 row — 2 person capacity (1 driver and 1 passenger)

Minivan — 3 person capacity (1 driver and 2 passengers)

Suburban - 3 person capacity (1 driver and 2 passengers)

12 Passenger Van — 4 person capacity (1 driver and 3 passengers)

Single Cab Truck — 1 person capacity (1 driver)

Crew Cab Truck — 2 person capacity (1 driver and 1 passenger)

25’ cutaway buses — 7 person capacity (1 driver and 6 passenger)

MV-1 ADA Specialty Vans — 2 person capacity (1 driver and 1 passenger)

o 0O 0 0O 0 0 0 ©°

Wear cloth face coverings.

s Per UW'’s Mask Policy students, faculty and staff are required to wear a face covering
when on campus or when conducting University-sponsored activities.
e A mask is not required for a driver that is alone in a rental vehicle.

Clean and disinfect surfaces.

« Vehicles should be cleaned and frequently touched surfaces should be disinfected
regularly (for example, the steering wheel, gearshift, door frame/handles, windows,
radio/temperature dials, mirrors, and seatbelt buckles).

e Itis recommended that disinfect frequently touched surfaces on a regular basis,
especially for long-distance travel.

Improve ventilation.

» Improve the ventilation in the vehicle if possible (for example, open the windows or set
the air ventilation/air conditioning on non-recirculation mode).

Disclaimer: The University of Wyoming COVID Policy, including this Transportation Policy, is informed by health and 2
safety recommendations from the CDC and the Wyoming Department of Health. The COVID Policy may be modified
based on the evolving environment and virus transmission. Please refer to this document regularly.



From: R

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 7:57 AM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich;Tami B. Benham—DeaI_
Ce: Jennifer Dawn Chavez

Subject: RE: Student testing email

Attachments: Revised Vault _ Student _email kes_+ laramie .docx

# This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening
attachments from external sources.

On update based on the Testing & Tracing WG notes from Friday — for discussion and finalization at 8am.

From: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 7:36 PM

Cc: Jennifer Dawn Chavez <Jennifer.Chavez@uwyo.edu>
Subject: [EXT] Student testing email

Tami,

Attached is the updated version of the student testing email. The only changes | made were to add the list of students in
each phase and a note in the timeframe for phase 1 students. If it looks good to you, | think Jen offered that her team
could get the message out pretty quickly.

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
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Dear [Student],

On August 12, 2020, the University of Wyoming Board of Trustees approved a plan proposed by University
President Seidel to welcome you back to campus using a phased approach,

University Leadership is confident that utilizing the following phased approach will ultimately increase the ability
to carry out a safe and successful fall 2020 semester. While the phased approach affords the University to
realize its overall goal of fostering a safe experience on campus, we realize this may raise questions for you as it
relates to your pre-return testing requirements.

The purpose of this email is to help you understand if you are required to complete the Pre-Return COVID-19
Vault Test prior to returning to Laramie. Please find your respective return to campus date below and carefully
read the requirements under Pre-Return COVID-19 Testing.

Resident Assistants

FSL on-campus students
ROTC

Speech Language Pathology
Graduate students

WWAMI

e Junior nursing students

law students

e Bridge Program
Graduate students with Dean
approval

e Students who met the housing
exception

e Law Summer Institute & first year

earlier for those who
moved into on-campus
housing, including
university’s apartments
prior to the start of
classes.

FOR STUDENTS
Population Return to Campus Pre-Return COVID-19 Test
Date (Vault Test)
Phase 1 Students: August 24 - You are required to complete the Pre-
e Athletes September 4*and Return COVID-19 Vault Test prior to

your arrival to Laramie. If you have
already received your negative test
results, no further action is required. If
you have not completed your test,
please do so immediately.

Phase 2 Students:

e All phase 1 students

¢ Freshman students taking face-
to-face First Year Seminar

e  All first year students in
residence halls
All Law students

e |RCC
PharmD-P1 students

September 7*" -
September 25

You are required to complete the Pre-
Return COVID-19 Vault Test prior to
your arrival. If you have already received
your negative test results, no further
action is required. If you have already
ordered your test kit but haven’t taken
it, please hold onto your test kit and
take the test one week prior to your
arrival.




From: Nycole Rae Courtney

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 10:09 AM
To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Subject: Video Content and Website Updates
Kim,

To help students, parents, families know about moving information daily. We are working on the following.

1. Student Experience Webpage is being updated as we learn more each day. It does have the phased
approach on it as of yesterday. This is a living and breathing website.
2. We are continuing to work on Student Success and Graduation website as needed.
3. Daily videos will be dropping by the end of the week.
a. Videos will focus on the questions that linger from the Student Town Hall.
b. We will focus on these content areas as well.
i.  CSIL, student experience Jeremy, others
ii. Dean O Neil- compliance, values, training, parties
ili. Amanda- DSS overview
iv.  Toi- in UCC- Julio already has recorded a video about mental health, and this will also
drop on the student experience page and youtube.
v.  Rian and housing expectations
vi. Riley (ASUW) student leader talking to a students
vii.  Mary Beth and Holly are talking about the reality of COVID.
4. The newsletter to parents, families, and students will also be going out to link some of these videos
related in there as well late this week, early next.

Nycole Courtney, EdD

AVP & Dean of Student Success and Graduation
University of Wyoming

1000 E. University Ave., Laramie WY 82071-2000 (mail)
Knight Hall, Rm 128

(307)766-3296

nf@uwyo.edu

Confidentiality Notice
The information contained in this email message or any attachments may be legally privileged and confidential. If you are not

an intended recipient, you are at this moment notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this email message or
any attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and permanently delete
the email message and any attachments immediately. You should not retain, copy, use, or disclose to any other person any part
of this email news or any accessories for any purpose. Any metadata contained in any attachment was sent inadvertently and

should not be examined.
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From:

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 11:05 AM
To: *\Aegan Elizabeth Selheim;Kimberly Chestnut Steich;Nycole Rae Courtney;Danika Roanne Salmans;Pilar

Louise Flores;Renee Ballard;Rhiana Danyial Murphy;Zoe A Curtright;Holly Bowlds:Courtney Leigh Thomson-Lichty;Mia
Kathryn Langworthy;Lisa Nelson Eva;Jane Wyndham Wolﬁnbarger,_

Cc: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil
Subject: RE: COVID HOTLINE: Updates to Testing Guidance
Audrey —

Thanks for reaching out. That’s correct. In conversations with Kim Chestnut, we confirmed yesterday that we are no longer requiring
all students who aren’t planning to return to campus to complete an exemption form for Pre-Return Testing.

Steich — please confirm we’re in alignment and whether we’re talking about the same exemptions.

Assuming we’re in alignment, there may be people who insist on some sort of exemption, and when that’s the case, then they
should be directed to Disability Student Services.

Kind regards,

From:

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 12:54 PM

To: Megan Elizabeth Selheim <mselheim@uwyo.edu>; Nycole Rae Courtney <NF@uwyo.edu>; Danika Roanne Salmans
<dsalmans@uwyo.edu>; Pilar Louise Flores <Pilar@uwyo.edu>; Renee Ballard <Renee.Ballard@uwyo.edu>; Rhiana
Danyial Murphy <rmurph16@uwyo.edu>; Zoe A Curtright <ZoeC@uwyo.edu>; Holly Bowlds <hbowlds@uwyo.edu>;
Courtney Leigh Thomson-Lichty <Courtney.ThomsonLichty@uwyo.edu>; Mia Kathryn Langworthy <mgraff@uwyo.edu>;

Lisa Nelson Eva <LEva@uHo.edu>; Jane Windham Wolfinbarier <JWolfy@uwyo.edu>;

Cc: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil <Ryan.Oneil@uwyo.edu>
Subject: RE: COVID HOTLINE: Updates to Testing Guidance

Hi Megan -

I was informed that there would be no exceptions available for pre-return testing. (
ﬁ— could one of you confirm this and respond to Megan'’s question regarding Disability Student Services?

Thank iou!

From: Megan Elizabeth Selheim <mselheim@uwyo.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 10:52 AM
To:

Nycole Rae Courtney <NF@uwyo.edu>; Danika Roanne Salmans
1>; Pilar Louise Flores <Pilar@uwyo.edu>; Renee Ballard <Ren
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Danyial Murphy <rmurph16@uwyo.edu>; Zoe A Curtright <ZoeC@uwyo.edu>; Holly Bowlds <hbow!|ds@uwyo.edu>;
Courtney Leigh Thomson-Lichty <Courtney.ThomsonLichty @uwyo.edu>; Mia Kathryn Langworthy <mgraff@uwyo.edu>;
Lisa Nelson Eva <LEva@uwyo.edu>; Jane Wyndham Wolfinbarger <JWolfy@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil <Ryan.Oneil@uwyo.edu>

Subject: [EXT] Re: COVID HOTLINE: Updates to Testing Guidance

DOS was told to route students who were requesting an exception to testing to the exception request form
that Disability Support Services is managing. Has that guidance changed?

Megan Selheim

Violence Prevention Coordinator

Green Dot Program Coordinator

Dean of Students Office

Dept. 3135, 1000 E. University Ave., Laramie WY 82071-2000
106 Knight Hall

307-766-3296

www.uwyo.edu/stop

Confidentiality Notice

The information contained in this e-mail message or in any attachments may be legally privileged and/or confidential. If you are not an
infended recipient, you are hereby nofified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this e-mail message or any attachments is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender and permanently delete the e-mail message and any
attachments immediately. You should not retain, copy, use or disclose to any other person any part of this e-mail message or of any
attachments for any purpose. Any metadata contained in any attachment was sent inadvertently and should not be examined.

From:

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 10:46 AM
To: Nycole Rae Courtney <NF@uwyo.edu>; Danika Roanne Salmans <dsalmans@uwyo.edu>; Megan Elizabeth Selheim
<mselheim@uwyo.edu>; Pilar Louise Flores <Pilar@uwyo.edu>; Renee Ballard <Renee.Ballard @uwyo.edu>; Rhiana
Danyial Murphy <rmurphl6@uwyo.edu>; Zoe A Curtright <ZoeC@uwyo.edu>; Holly Bowlds <hbowlds@uwyo.edus;
Courtney Leigh Thomson-Lichty <Courtney. Thomsonlichty@uwyo.edu>; Mia Kathryn Langworthy <mgraff@uwyo.edu>;
Lisa Nelson Eva <LEva@uwyo.edu>; Jane Wyndham Wolfinbarger </Wolfy@uwyo.edu>

Subject: COVID HOTLINE: Updates to Testing Guidance

# This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments
from external sources.

Hi there COVID Hotline Team,

Happy Tuesday to you all @ Please find attached the most current Vault Testing guidance. I've also updated the
Cheat Sheets with this info, and uploaded this document to the Teams site here.

UPDATES TO NOTE:

No exceptions to pre-return testing will be granted

All students in Laramie must complete Vault testing (including online-only students)
All Phase 1 students must complete pre-return testing

Phase 2 and Phase 3 students must complete Vault testing prior

Distance learners who will not travel to Laramie do not need to complete Vault testing

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks for all you do!
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
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From: Danika Roanne Salmans

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 12:51 PM
To: Chad R. Baldwin;Brant A. Schumaker|
Cc: _Nycole Rae Courtney;Tara Evans;Tami B. Benham-Deal| om

Koczara;Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil;Kimberly Chestnut Steich;Mary Beth Bender;Jennifer Dawn Chavez
Subject: COVID Dashboard TUES 8/18

Below is the TUESDAY 8/18 Update from the COVID HUB -
New cases today = 7 (Data was pulled from Vault up through 12:00pm on 8/18/2020)

¢ 1 Unknown
¢ 3 Employees
o
o
o)
¢ 3 Students
o
o)
o

Active Cases =42
e 2students living on campus positive cases
e 32 students living off-campus positive cases
e 9 employees living off-campus positive cases
Monitoring cases =0

14 Day Quarantine due to exposure to a positive =47

e 9:0n Campus - 14 Day Quarantine
e 38 Off Campus - 14 Day Quarantine

Recovered from COVID Positive = 13
e 13 :Recovered COVID Positive Cases
Released from 14 Day Quarantine/Monitoring
e  4:Released from 14 Day Quarantine/Monitoring
TOTAL COVID Cases = Current cases + Recovered Cases = 55

TOTAL Tests Run by Vault = 9,898

HOTLINE Emails for August: 6,028
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From: [ —

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 1:05 PM

To: Kimberli Chestnut Steich'|Mai Beth Beidirlﬁﬁili Rae Courtney
Cc:

Subject: Pre-Return Vault Test_Student Comm_08.18.20.docx
Attachments: Pre-Return Vault Test_Student Comm_08.18.20.docx

# This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments
from external sources.

Hi Kim, Mary Beth, and Nycole —

Attached is the student communication that was reviewed during today’s EEPG meeting. Can you please review the final
draft and let us know if you require any changes?

Thank you!

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
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Phase 3 Students: September 28t — if you have already received your

All students welcomed to campus November 20*" negative test results, no further action is
required. If you already have a test kit in
hand, you should hold onto your test kit
and take it one week prior to your
arrival. If you have not ordered a test
kit, no further action is required.

Distant Learners not returning to N/A You are not required to complete the
Laramie Pre-Return COVID-19 Vault Test.
Distant Learners include all students who
will NOT be returning to campus at any
time during the fall semester.

Students residing in Laramie regardless | N/A You are required to complete the Pre-
of Phase Return COVID-19 Vault Test. If you have
already received your negative test
results, no further action is required. If
you have not completed your test,
please do so immediately.

For the latest information and developments on the Fall 2020 return, please navigate to the UW Campus Return
page. Further information on ongoing testing programs will be shared prior to your arrival.

Best Regards,
The University of Wyoming COVID-19 Response Team



From: Alex Kean

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 1:32 PM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Subject: contact from the Governor's Office regarding COVID case
Hi Kim,

Can you give me a call at your earliest convenience at_The Governor’s Office contacted me regarding a
case on campus and they have a few questions.

Thank you,

Alex Kean
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From: Anne M. Alexander

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 1:40 PM

To: Office of the President;Ben Blalock;Tara Evans;Neil David Theobald;Edmund J. Synakowski;Emily Ann Monago;Thomas
K. Burman;Kimberly Chestnut Steich;Robert Aylward;Chad R. Baldwin;RoseMarie London

Cc: Elizabeth Kathleen Jenkins;Fawn N. Killion;Melanie Tanja Drever;Mandy Jane Gifford;Karyn BercheniKaila L.
Mills;Brandyn Leigh Brummond;Nicole M. Lester;Edward Seidel

Subject: RE: President's Weekly Cabinet Meeting

Attachments: Cabinet meeting agenda Aug 13.docx

Colleagues, attached is our agenda from last week, which as you recall we had to cancel due to COVID response. What
changes or additions would you like to see to it? Happy to take your suggestions. Please send to me by noon
tomorrow.

Anne

-----Original Appointment-----
From: Office of the President <uwpres@uwyo.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, July 22, 2020 10:35 AM
To: Office of the President; Ben Blalock; Tara Evans; Neil David Theobald; Anne M. Alexander; Edmund J. Synakowski;

Emily Ann Monago; Thomas K. Burman; Kimberly Chestnut Steich; Robert Aylward; Chad R. Baldwin; RoseMarie London
Cc: Elizabeth Kathleen Jenkins; Fawn N. Killion; Melanie Tanja Drever; Mandy Jane Gifford; Karyn Bercheni; Kaila L. Mills;
Brandyn Leigh Brummond; Nicole M. Lester; Edward Seidel

Subject: President's Weekly Cabinet Meeting
When: Thursday, August 20, 2020 9:00 AM-10:00 AM (UTC-07:00) Mountain Time (US & Canada).

Where: Open for Zoom information

Join Zoom Meetini
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President’s Cabinet Meeting
Agenda, August 13, 2020

COVID response and Board call review and after-action (all)
Board agenda topics process (Anne/Tara)

Board and presidential authority cheat sheets (Tara)

Brief tutorial on UW regulations and SAP’s (Tara)
Roundtable



From: Chad R. Baldwin

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 2:07 PM
To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich;Tara Evans
Subject: FW: media response

Attachments: quarantine.statement.docx

Are you OK with this, Kim and Tara?

Chad

From: Chad R. Baldwin
Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 1:38 PM
To: Edward Seidel <Edward.Seidel@uwyo.edu>; Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>; Tara Evans

<tevans15@uwyo.edu>; Tami B. Benham-Deal <Benham@uwyo.edu>
Subject: media response

Ed:

I've received a request from the Casper Star-Tribune for comment on the criticisms leveled by the parent of one of our
students in quarantine/isolation.

Recognizing that we’re probably prohibited by FERPA and/or HIPAA from talking publicly about this particular case, |
spoke with Kim and drafted the attached to respond to the reporter — and to social media posts.

| welcome any changes and other guidance. | told the reporter we would have something for him this afternoon.

Thanks!

Chad Baldwin
Associate Vice President for Marketing and Communications

University of Wyoming

Laramie, WY 82070
Main Office 307-766-2929
Direct 307-766-2929

Fax 307-766-6729
cbhaldwin@uwyo.edu
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Based upon pre-return COVID-19 testing that is part of the University of
Wyoming’s fall return plan, two students in UW residence halls tested positive for

the infection over the weekend. Contact tracing determined that eight other
students in the residence halls had close contact with the students who tested
positive.

As a result, the university transported the two students to isolation housing and the
other eight to quarantine housing, according to public health protocols.

By their very nature, these actions take place on short notice and are disruptive to
the individuals involved. The university has provided the students the supplies and
other materials they need; delivers meals three times a day, as well as snacks; and
has been responsive to the students’ requests for personal and other items.

Additionally, Student Health Service is attending to the students’ basic health care
needs through daily monitoring and communication. As classes begin, they will
receive support they need to succeed academically as well.

The university will continue to refine the process, as we are committed to being
very responsive to the needed level of care for our students in quarantine and
isolation. This includes communication with the students and parents to make sure
they have the support they need to emerge from quarantine and isolation healthy
and ready to resume their lives as seamlessly as possible.



From: Danielle B Farino

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 2:27 PM
To:
Subject: Pick-up Sign up Form

Good Afternoon ECEC Families,

As mentioned in Mark’s email discussing the new COVID policies and procedures, it is time to choose your Drop-Off and
Pick-Up time slots! (If you have already completed the survey, you can disregard this message.)

We try to be courteous of families with multiple children at the facility, as coordinating pick up with children in different
classrooms can be tricky. Therefore if you are unable to access one of the time slots, it may be because | sent this link to
those families yesterday and they may have claimed that time slot already.

As a reminder on this form, once you select a time slot, it eliminates that time slot and other families cannot select that
one for themselves. For that reason, we ask that you only select one time slot. As always, if you would like to pick your
children up earlier than the first time slot on the list, please let us know and we will be happy to accommodate. As you
are working through the form, it will ask you to select a time in each of the classrooms, if your child is not in that
classroom, just select “Next”.

Here is the link:

If you have any troubles with it, please let me know. Thank you all for completing this is a timely manner. We greatly
appreciate all of you!

Best,

Dannc Darino
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Office Associate

Early Care and Education Center
dfarino@uwyo.edu
307-766-4816
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Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 3:18 PM

To: ary Beth Bender;Tom Koczara;Kimberly Chestnut Steich
Ce:

Subject: RE: Guidance Needed: Inconclusive/Negative Results Comms
Attachments: Employee AND Student_InconclusiveTest_081820.docx

Hi All = | was able to talk with Nycole, who approved/is comfortable with -recommendation below for
individuals that receive inconclusive test results (these individuals will be directed to call the COVID Hotline to work out
logistics for taking a second test) . The revised communication (including Tom’s other edits) is attached here. | hope to
get both the revised negative communication and the revised inconclusive communication out to Jen ASAP.

Thanks!

From:
Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 1:10 PM

To: Mary Beth Bender <mbender4@uwyo.edu>; Tom Koczara
<tkoczara@uwyo.edu>; Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

cc:

Subject: RE: Guidance Needed: Inconclusive/Negative Results Comms

All — see attached for the revised negative result communication, incorporating Tom'’s feedback. @Kimberly Chestnut
Steich if you have a few minutes to review/approve this communication, | can get this one off to Jen while we iterate on
the inconclusive communication.

For the inconclusive comms — _I will confirm with Nycole that this approach is okay. | will send an
updated communication once confirmed.

Thank iou!
From: [

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 12:38 PM
To; Mary Beth Bender <mbenderd @uwyo.edu>; Tom Koczara

<tkoczara@uwyo.edu>; Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Subject: RE: Guidance Needed: Inconclusive/Negative Results Comms

To speak to the original source of the direction on a referral to a healthcare provider, this originated from a conversation
between Nycole and Tara to solve a problem with folks who did not have the time to wait for a VAULT result. This is a
very short term problem; we could go forward with the expectation that VAULT will provide a second code and
exceptions will be granted if timing is not sufficient.

A statement to follow up with the COVID hotline would allow this small number to addressed on a case by case basis,
but will add calls to the hotline. Mary Beth and Kim, if this works for you, -erhaps you can confirm with Nycole
that she is OK with it?
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rrom: [

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 2:30 PM

To: Mary Beth Bender <mbenderd@uwyo.edu>; Tom Koczara <tkoczara@uwyo.edu>; Kimberly Chestnut Steich
<k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Cc:

Subject: RE: Guidance Needed: Inconclusive/Negative Results Comms
Tom = | will address your changes. Thank you!

Mary Beth — the EEPG instructed us to add in the language about seeking a test at a local healthcare provider.
At the moment, if someone receives an inconclusive test result, Jen’s team is sharing a new test link with that individual,
which takes away a test from the balance for the Bridge Program.

Employees need to seek the test at Ivinson (or local healthcare provider), but for students, would the correct course of
action be to direct those who get inconclusive test results to make an appointment at SHS to get a second test
completed and self-isolate until that result is received?

Once confirmed, | can make this change. Thank youl

Best,
Mackenzie

From: Mary Beth Bender <mbender4@uwyo.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 11:39 AM
To: Tom Koczara <tkoczara@uwyo. > | bely Chestnut Steich

<k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Cc;

Subject: [EXT] RE: Guidance Needed: Inconclusive/Negative Results Comms

| agree with all of Tom’s points.

In particular for follow up testing on inconclusives: even if we have a way of making sure the cost is covered, some
people won’t be able to get a test through a healthcare provider because they don’t have symptoms. | thought Vault
was supposed to automatically send them a new test if the result was inconclusive?

Mowy Bethv Bender, MS, APRN, FNP-C

Director & Primary Care Nurse Practitioner
University of Wyoming Student Health Service
307.766.2130 (phone)

307.766.2711 (fax)
http://www.uwyo.edu/sher

Pronouns: she/her/hers

If you are a UW student and need to communicate with me about personal medical concerns or questions, please
contact me through the secure patient portal: http://patientportal.uwyo.edu
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THIS E-MAIL, INCLUDING ANY ATTACHMENTS, IS FOR THE SOLE USE OF THE INTENDED RECIPIENT AND MAY CONTAIN
CONFIDENTIAL AND PRIVILEGED INFORMATION. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REVIEW, USE, DISCLOSURE, OR DISTRIBUTION IS
PROHIBITED. IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, PLEASE CONTACT THE SENDER BY E-MAIL AND DESTROY ALL
COPIES OF THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE.

From: Tom Koczara <tkoczara@ uwyo.edu>

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 10:27 AM
To:hMary Beth Bender <mbender4 @uwyo.edu>; Kimberly Chestnut

Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

ubject: RE: Guidance Needed: Inconclusive/Negative Results Comms

Here are my suggested edits:

Negative Test Result email:
e The ‘COVID Pass App’ is now called ‘COVID Pass’
e |recommend ltem #3 be changed to “... must wear face coverings” instead of use face coverings.
¢ The phases are student-centric. We should add something just below the table, specific to employees. The last
guidance we gave was:

For UW employees, we offer the following guidance regarding your return to campus:
o  The direction through the end of Phase 1 (August 24" — September 4™) for staff and faculty continues to be: if
you can work remotely, continue to do so.

e Ifyou are uncertain if you should be on campus, call your supervisor. During phase 1, we are asking our
supervisors to adhere to the principle of flexibility and adaptability to help reduce density until surveillance
testing is operational.

o There will be some employees, especially those related to student support services, who will be asked to return
to campus

Inconclusive Test Result edits:

» There is no mention of who pays for the follow-up test. | don’t have the answer to this but we should clarify this
in the email.

e We should add an instruction for employees to notify their supervisor. The supervisor can work with the
employee regarding remote work or proper absence reporting.

e We should add guidance/instructions for communicating the result of the second/follow-up test. How do the
results of the second test get to UW, especially if Vault is not used?

e I'm not sure the ‘back on campus soon’ closing applies here. We have many remote employees and students.

Thomas A. Koczara
AVP Human Resources
University of Wyoming
304 Hill Hall

0: (307) 766-5600

tkoczara@uwyo.edu

rrom: [

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 10:01 AM
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To: Mary Beth Bender <mbenderd @uwyo.edu>; Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@ uwyo.edu>; Tom Koczara
<tkoczara@uwyo.edu>

cc:

Subject: FW: Guidance Needed: Inconclusive/Negative Results Comms

¢ This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments
from external sources.

Hi Mary Beth, Kim, Tom - Please see attached for the following communications. Can each of your provide either edits
or approvals to this thread?

o Inconclusive results comms
o This has been amended to direct folks to seek a test at their local healthcare clinic when they
receive an inconclusive result, but also instructs them to call the COVID Hotline and self-isolate.
o My assumption is that if the COVID Hotline wants to help them get a new test at student health
(instead of a local health provider) they could help them set that up at their discretion
o Keep in mind this is a relatively small population — inconclusive results don’t happen very often

o Negative test results comms
o This has been amended to TAKE OUT “welcome to campus language” and ADD phased approach
guidance (from email that was already shared by Chad)

We are hoping to provide to Jen these templates to get sent out as soon as possible.

Thanks,

From: NN

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 8:49 AM
To:
Subject: RE: Comms Updates

<
]

The inconclusive test result comm (attached): | never received an answer from Tara, but-did indicate she
doesn’t think it needs approval from Tara
o See the attached email chain — looks like the want to direct people to Ivinson, but IMO keeping it
general (i.e., “go to your local healthcare provider) is better for the masses?
o Important to remember that this is generally a very small population
¢ See the drafted negative test result communication — | have added in the phased approach guidance and took
out verbiage around “welcome to campus....” Language
o Feelfree to let me know if further edits are necessary?
e | will work on the comms tracker next!

Thanks — let me know if you have any questions.
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From:
Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 4:34 AM

To:

Subject: Comims upaates

0

A few things on the comms front:
e Has the inconclusive test result been approved by Tara et ali?
e Can you draft up a new negative test result today?
e Can you update the comms tracker in UW teams with the new holds on the student accounts?

Let me know if you have gquestions.
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
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Negative Vault Health COVID-19 Test Result

Dear [Name],

Thank you for participating in the University of Wyoming's pre-return COVID-19 testing program through
Vault Health.

Test Results: Our records indicate you have received a negative COVID-19 test result. A negative test
result means that the virus that causes COVID-19 was not found in your saliva sample.

Important Reminder: a negative test result does not mean that you should stop following the University’s
COVID Policy or the current state, local or CDC guidelines. Individuals with negative COVID-19 test results

may still contract COVID-19 in the future.

We ask that you please help the UW community limit the spread of COVID-19 by adhering to the
following requirements:

1. Take the applicable COVID-19 Training.
a. Students can access the training here.
b. Employees can access the training through UW’'s Employee LearnCenter.

2. For students, confirm your return to campus phase and corresponding date by referring to the
UW Campus Return page.

3. For employees, confirm your return to campus phase and corresponding date by referring to
the UW Campus Return page. Also understand the following guidance:

a. Through the end of Phase 1, employees should work remotely if possible.

b. if you are uncertain if you should be on campus, call your supervisor.

¢. There will be some employees, especially those related to student support services,
who will be asked to return to campus.

4. Enroll in the bridge and surveillance testing programs upon arrival to campus. More
information will be provided on these requirements upon return.

5. Familiarize yourself with UW’s COVID-19 Policy.

6. Familiarize yourself with the COVID Pass tool requirements. UW has created a tool that will
allow the campus community to self-report unexpected symptoms before coming onto campus.
Students and employees will be encouraged to use this tool daily. If you are experiencing
symptoms, you should not come to campus.

7. Do your part to contain the spread.

If you have outstanding questions about your COVID-19 test result or other policies being implemented
at UW this fall, please contact the UW COVID Hotline by emailing COVID19@uwyo.edu or calling at 307-

766-COVD (2683).

We are looking forward to a successful fall semester at the University of Wyoming! This will be an
unusual semester, but we are confident that we will have a valuable experience.

Remember, Cowboys Can!

Sincerely,
The UW COVID Response Team




From: Tom Koczara

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 5:00 PM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Subject: Slides for Staff Briefing 20 Aug 2020_draft1.pptx
Attachments: Slides for Staff Briefing 20 Aug 2020_draft1.pptx
Hi Kim,

Here’s a very rough draft.
Per Neil, we should exclude any Academic topics, as AA will deliver a separate Briefing for them.

I will continue to work on this tomorrow, refining the content. Please feel free to add any slides/topics.

TK
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STAFF BRIEFING

Phased Approach to Fall 2020 Re-Opening
The Board of Trustees approved the following adjustments to UW’s Fall 2020 reopening plans

Phased Approach

# of Students: 1,500

Phase 1: Aug 24 - Sept 4

All classes online

No additional students on
campus

Remote work where possible

Testing for students and
employees who must remain on
campus

*UNIVERS!T\A W VOMING

Some students return, in-person
classes begin

Face-to-face critical employees
retum to campus

Weekly random sampling testing
program

All Students on Campus

All students return for 8 full
weeks of face-to-face instruction

Increased campus employees,
but continued work for home
where possible

Surveillance testing program

Phase 4: Nov 23 — Dec
All Students Online

to remote delivery

Employees continue working as
per staffing plan

Testing based on disease
prevalence

All classes and final exams switch

11




STAFF BRIEFING Phased Approach

Phased Approach to Fall 2020 Re-Opening

When do | need to come back to campus?

» Talk to your supervisor

* Based on when you’re needed on campus to support Fall semester
* Phase |: Just like summer mode

* Phase II: More students on campus; some face-to-face instruction
* Phase lll: “New” August 24th
* Phase IV: Back to summer mode

ﬁ LINIVERSIT Vi WYOMING



STAFF BRIEFING Expectations

Expectations for all Employees

Wearing of Masks: A face mask is a cloth shield that covers both the nose and mouth. UW employees and students are required to

wear face coverings while on UW-owned property or when conducting university business or activities, including instruction and
research. This includes outdoor spaces.

« Appropriate Social Distancing: Offices, workspaces, classrooms and laboratories will be arranged in such a way to keep adequate

spacing between employees. This requires individuals to maintain at least 6 feet of physical space between themselves and other
people and to not gather in large groups.

Good Hygiene Practices: Everyone should practice proper hand-washing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds. As
recommended by the CDC, everyone must cover coughs and sneezes with a tissue or use the inside of their elbow.

-
» Pre-Return Testing and Training: All employees must complete a pre-return COVID test and mandatory training before they return

to campus for the start of fall 2020 semester.
ﬁ
W g , =z
» CovidPass: Once the pass is implemented, all employees will be required to log their health status with CovidPass. Depending on

the answers, the tools will clear them to attend work or will advise them to stay at home. Each person is responsible for utilizing
health monitoring tools daily.

\,

‘ e Reporting Symptoms: You are required to immediately report any symptoms that might indicate COVID-19.

i » Travel: You should carefully consider the consequences of non-essential personal travel on the UW community.

$UNIVERSITV.4 WYOMING



STAFF BRIEFING

UW COVID-19 Testing: Fall 2020

The pivot to our phased approach necessitated changes to UW’s pre-
return testing program

Do | still need to take my Vault test?
* Phase I:

* Phase ll:

* Phase lli:

*L'NIVERS]TVM WVOMING

Pre-Return Testing

———eErera——

FOR-EMPLOYEESH o
Populationst Retumn-to- Pre-Return-COVID-19-Test-q ]
Campus-Dat: {VaultTestju
Phase1q Aug:24*— Hyou-are-able:t pletely-sociallyd whik et
Employeesreturning-to- Septa™ oncampus{e. g.wovkdnm-pﬂmoﬂ}oeﬁﬁm:t
campus-who-are-able-to: contact-with-others)you-do-not-need-t plete-the:
sociafly-distancethemselvesit VAULT-test.t
Phase19 Aug-24™— tf-you-expectto-be-anW-property,-oron-UW- L
Employees-returning:to Septa™ business-(and-are-unable-to.soclally-distance-at-all:
campus-whoare-not-abieto times)through-the September-25th,-please-complete.
socially-distance-themselvestt the-VAULTRest,|deally-a-week-beforeyou-return-to-
campus.-If-you-have-completed-the-test,-you-do-not.
needto-retest.t
Phase-29 Sept-7™— fyousre-able-ta-completelysodially-distancewhile- [
Employeesretumingto Sept25™a on-campus:(e.g.-work- ln-a-pﬂvahe-omne-withuut
campus-who-are-sble-to vith-others)you-do-not: plete-th
sociafly-distance-themselvesi VAULT-test
Phase-24 Sept-7™— fyou-expectto-be-onUW-property,.or-an-UW- r
Employees-returningto: Sept25™4 buslness(andare-unable-to-soda!ly—dlstanoeet-all
tampus-who-are-not-ableto- times)-throughthe-S ber25th,-please-comp
soclally-distance-themselvesit MVAULTM Medly-a-mek-befom-you returnto-
you p ithe-test, you-donot:
need-to-remt.n
Phase3-Employeesy] Sept28%— | ifyou-have-already dey gative-test I
Allemployees-welcomedto- | Now20™ results -nofurther-actionis-required. tf-you-atready-
campustt ' have-a-test-kitin-hand, you-should-hold-onto-your-test.
kit-and4take-itoneweek-priorto-your-arrival.Hfyou-
have-not-orderad-a-test-kit,-no-further-actionis-
required
Remote-Employees:q N/AX Youarenotsequired-tocomplete-tha-Pre-Return:
Remote-employees-include- COVID-18-Vault-Test. &t
all-employeeswho-plan-to-
workfrom-home-and-will-
NOT-retum-to-campus-at-any:
time-during thesemestertt




STAFF BRIEFING = A - COVID Pass

CovidPass
To be implemented on Monday, August 24, All employees will be required to log their health status with CovidPass
before coming to campus each day.

Covid-19 Home

* What do | do if | fail?

CovidPass

UW Faculty, Staff & Students

gUNIVERSITV- « WVOMING



STAFF BRIEFING

Supervisor Training

Return To Campus Supervisor Training
HR is developing training, targeted to our supervisors, to support effective team management in the COVID

environment..

Réturn to Campus Employee
Thini \

DETAILS WV

Q‘uwrvmsrr Ve WVOMING

As UW.embarks on restarting on-campus instruction, the University has the
opportunity to reinvent the way the organization teaches, learns, works, and
.grows. Some requirements of this pandemic state will fall away as vaccines are
developed and improved methods of caring for those affected by the disease are
developed, but today UW is called to seize this opportunity to re-imagine and
‘recreate its environment.

N Se
s %% Ve



STAFF BRIEFING - — . Exceptions & Accommodations

Policy Exceptions & Accommodations
HR launched this web page for employees to request COVID policy exceptions and ADA accommodations.

U W A-Z DIRECTORY | Search

NAVIGATION

COVID-19 REASONABLE
ACCOMMODATION/WORKPLACE EXCEPTIONS

Faculty, staff and students whose age or health condition falie within one of the COC High Risk Categones or who have other special crcumstances may vequest a
Reasonable Accommadation or Workplace Exception by completing the itake form provided ‘below.

PROCESS AT A GLANCE ‘ CDC WEBSITE

process oot I that ¢

* LINIVERSIT Vo WYOMING



STAFF BRIEFING

Key Dates
Key Dates
What’s happening during the fall semester?
* Order your pre-return test: August3 -7
» Take your pre-return test: August 11 - 13 )
Update this

* Move-in week: August 17 — 21

* Complete mandatory return-to-campus training: August 24

» First day of classes: August 24

» Last day to add, change sections or change grading options in semester courses: Aug. 27
* Last day to drop semester courses: Sept. 2

* Labor Day: September 7 — now an instructional day

* Last day of in-person classes: November 20

» Last day of all classes: December 4

* Finals week: December 7 -11

* UINIVERSIT Vo WYOMING



From: Chad R. Baldwin

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 5:18 PM

To: i nut Steich;aa-eepg@uwyo.edu;RoseMarie London;Tom Koczara
Ce: Wnne M. Alexandenbandy Jane Gifford

Subject: RE: Review of current communications efforts

Attachments: staff.faculty.sessions.docx

All:

Attached is a draft notice about both the Thursday session for staff and the Friday session for faculty.

Kim, I’'m told there’s a desire to not use the “town hall” moniker for these sessions, contrary to what | told you earlier.
Mandy is going to provide a Zoom link for each session.

Tami, this draft assumes that the video Q&A videos will proceed as well.

| welcome any changes. We should get these out tomorrow morning, if possible.

Thanks.

Chad

From: aa-eepg@uwyo.edu <aa-eepg@uwyo.edu> On Behalf Of Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 3:58 PM

To: aa-eepg@uwyo.edu; RoseMarie London <rlondon@uwyo.edu>; Tom Koczara <tkoczara@uwyo.edu>
Cc: Anne M. Alexander <AAlex@uwyo.edu>;

Subject: AA-EEPG - Review of current communications efforts

Friends,
This morning in the Cabinet meeting, Ed asked for an update on campus communication efforts. | had the chance to

connect with a number of folks in clarifying information and making additional plans. Below is what | know as of now but

open to others updates as needed. Aspects can be ongoing week after week as needed.

Thanks,
Kim

Campus Communication efforts week of 8.17.2020
1. President letter to campus: Anne offered to help draft in tandem with RoseMarie
2. Questions to Answers - Upcoming Videos: Nycole Courtney and Jenny Petty are creating short video clips for
students and families, Tami and others have offered to do the same for faculty and staff
3. Staff Townhall Q & A: Tom Koczara, Kim Chestnut, and an AA representative to facilitate
a. Thursday August 20, 2020 2:00-3:30pm
b. Chad, can you help in coordinating a message/notice to campus?
4. Faculty Townhall Q & A: Anne Alexander and others she may invite
a. Friday — determining time
5. Division Communication: Each VP or designee will provide weekly communication to their division about
relevant updates. Some divisions are already providing regular communication, others may need to start.

350



6. Contact with Parents and Families: Nycole Courtney and Kyle Moore to provide ongoing outreach to this
community, there have been monthly emails so far. We can coordinate live Q & A with families and Dr. Seidel as
well. We can plan for next week, open to input.
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Information Sessions for UW Staff Thursday, Faculty Friday

August 19, 2020 — University of Wyoming employees will have an opportunity to
hear from and ask questions of UW leaders during information sessions via Zoom

this week.

The focus is UW’s phased return plan for the fall semester amid the COVID-19
pandemic.

An information session for non-faculty staff and employees is set for 2-3:30 p.m.
Thursday, Aug. 20. The link to participate is xxxxxx. Among those scheduled to
present information and respond to questions are Vice President for Student Affairs
Kim Chestnut and Associate Vice President for Human Resources Tom Koczara.

An information session for faculty members is 2-3:30 p.m. Friday, Aug. 21. The
link to participate is xxxxx. Among those scheduled to present information are
Interim Provost Anne Alexander and Vice Provost Tami Benham-Deal.

These live sessions are in addition to planned video recordings to provide
information to faculty and staff members -- and answer their questions. Thursday’s
session for staff members and Friday’s session for faculty members will include
live questions and answers, but employees may also submit questions ahead of
time by emailing townhall@uwyo.edu or going here.




Sent: uesday, August 18, ;

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich
Subject: FW: Comms Kim Needs to Review
Attachments: Pre-Return Vault Test_Student Comm_08.18.20.docx; Employee AND Student_InconclusiveTest_081820.docx;

Employee AND Student_NegativeTestComm_081820_v2.docx

4 This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments
from external sources.

rrom |

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 8:14 PM

To:
Subject: Comms Kim Needs to Review

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
President Seidel to welcome you back to campus using a phased approach.

University Leadership is confident that utilizing the following phased approach will ultimately increase the ability
to carry out a safe and successful fall 2020 semester. While the phased approach affords the University to
realize its overall goal of fostering a safe experience on campus, we realize this may raise question's foryou as it
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

e Freshman students taking face-
to-face First Year Seminar

e Allfirst year students in
residence halis

e All Law students
LRCC

e PharmD-P1 students

FOR STUDENTS
Population Return to Campus Pre-Return COVID-19 Test
Date {Vault Test)
Phase 1 Students: August 24" — You are required to complete the Pre-

o Athletes September 4™ and Return COVID-19 Vault Test prior to
e Resident Assistants earlier for those who your arrival to Laramie. If you have
e FSL on-campus students moved into on-campus | already received your negative test
e ROTC housing, including results, no further action is required. If
e Speech Language Pathology university’s apartments | you have not completed your test,

Graduate students prior to the start of please do so immediately.
e WWAMI classes.
e Junior nursing students
e Law Summer Institute & first year

law students
e Bridge Program
e Graduate students with Dean

approval
e Students who met the housing

exception

Phase 2 Students: September 7* - You are required to complete the Pre-

e All phase 1 students September 25 Return COVID-19 Vault Test prior to

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




Phase 3 Students: September 28 — If you have already received your

All students welcomed to campus November 20t negative test results, no further action is
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



Vauit Health COVID-19 Test: Inconclusive Test Result

Dear [Name],

Thank you for participating in the University of Wyoming’s required pre-return COVID-19
testing through Vault Health. It has come to our attention that you received an inconclusive
COVID-19 test result. As a reminder, Vault reports COVID-19 testing results as required to
applicable health care government authorities for their public health activities.

Vault Health ran your inconclusive test result a second time to ensure it was truly inconclusive
and notifying you of such. An inconclusive result means that that 1 out of 3 genes common to

SARS-CoV-2 virus is present.

We are treating inconclusive test results as pre-supposed positives; please follow the
instructions listed below:

1. Contact the UW COVID Hotline immediately to notify them of your inconclusive
result. You can contact the UW COVID Hotline at COVID19@uwyo.edu or (307) 766-
COVD (2683).

¢ The UW COVID Hotline will help you coordinate a second COVID-19 test
through Vault Health, UW Student Health Services, or your local healthcare
provider.

o  Work with a representative from the COVID Hotline on next steps for contact
tracing up to 48 hours before you initially took your Vault Health COVID-19
test.

2. If you are an employee, you should notify your supervisor, who can work with you to
make arrangements for remote work or proper absence reporting.

3. Immediately begin self-isolation. You should self-isolate until you receive a negative
COVID-19 test result. Only after receipt of a negative test result should you stop self-

isolating.

Understand that UW must take these precautions to contain the spread of COVID-19 on UW's
campus to the greatest extent possible throughout the Fall 2020 semester. Your cooperation
with this effort is essential to maintain the health and safety of the Cowboy community.

Cowboys Can have a successful Fall 2020 semester by working together and employing the UW
Cowboy values of compassion and personal responsibility regarding the COVID-19 pandemic.
You are empowered as a UW community member to make the right decisions and take the
proper steps to limit the spread of COVID-19 on UW’s campus.

We thank you for your help in making this a great semester!

Sincerely,
The UW COVID Response Team




Negative Vault Health COVID-19 Test Result

Dear [Name],

As part of the University of Wyoming's required pre-return COVID-19 testing through Vauit Health, you
received a negative COVID-19 test result. A negative test result means that the virus that causes COVID-
19 was not found in your saliva sample.

However, a negative test result does not mean that you should stop Jfollowing the current state, local
or CDC guidelines and more importantly, that you cannot contract COVID-19 in the future.

As you know, UW has adopted a phased approach for returning to campus. A summary of the phases
and who falls within each phase can be found below.

Student Guidance
Phase 1 Almost all courses are online. Students allowed on campus are those already
Aug. 24-Sept. 4 here, including student-athletes; ROTC cadets; speech-language pathology
graduate students; WWAMI Medical Education Program students; junior nursing
students; College of Law Summer Institute and first-year law students; Bridge
Program students; and other graduate students with dean approval Students
who meet certain hardshup criteria also will be allowed to move into the
residence halls as had been scheduled

Phase 2 Most courses remain onlme, except for first-year seminars, which will shift from |
Sept. 7-25 online to face-to-face instruction {for those that were schedule to be in person),
and some pharmacy courses. Students on campus include all those from Phase 1,
along with all first-year students in the residence halls; freshmen taking face-to-
face first-year seminars; all law students; students in the theracy Research Center
N and Clinic; and first-year pharmacy students.

Phase 3 Ali students are welcomed to campus, and courses will be delivered with a

Sept. 28-Nov. 20 | mixture of in-person and online instruction. in-person student activities will be

expanded, and many campus buildings will be open, including Half Acre

- Recreation and Wellness Center (likely by appointment).

Phase 4 All courses and Fnal exams will be conducted online. Students will leave the
Nov. 23-Dec. 11 | residence halls, except for those granted exceptions. Campus bmldmgs will shift
to restricted access, and the surveillance testing program will continue for those
remaining on campus.

Employee Guidance

e The direction through the end of Phase 1 (August 24th — September 4th) for staff and faculty
continues to be: if you can work remotely, continue to do so.

e If you are uncertain if you should be on campus, call your supervisor. During phase 1, we are
asking our supervisors to adhere to the principle of flexibility and adaptability to help reduce
density until surveillance testing is operational.

e There will be some employees, especially those related to student support services, who will be

____asked to return to campus IET—

Testing lnformatlen

Dunng Phases 1 and 2, random samplmg COVID-19 testing will take place. Beginning in Phase 3 the

university will operate a surveillance testing program under which all students, faculty, and staff who

| come to campus will take a COVID-19 test twice a week.

,....




We want to emphasize that a negative COVID-19 test result does not negate your responsibility to help
in limiting the spread of COVID-19 on UW’s campus to the greatest extent possible. We ask that you
please help the UW community limit the spread of COVID-19 by adhering to the following
requirements:

1.

7.

Take the applicable COVID-19 Training. There is a COVID-19 required training for all students
and employees.

Familiarize yourself with the COVID Pass tool requirements. UW has created a tool that will
allow the campus community to self-report unexpected symptoms before coming onto campus.
Students and employees will be encouraged to use this tool daily. If you are experiencing
symptoms, you should not come to campus.

Employees, students and visitors must wear face coverings while on University of Wyoming
property: This policy extends to property both indoors and outdoors. The Mask Policy has an
exception of when alone in your personal residence hall room or offices with a closed door.
Special exceptions may be made on a case-by-case basis.

Employees, students and visitors must follow all physical distancing rules responsibly:
Students, faculty and staff are required to maintain six feet of physical distance from other
people, if possible. This expectation applies both indoors and outdoors.

Employees, students and visitors must practice hand hygiene & respiratory etiquette: Wash
your hands for at least 20 seconds often. If you can’t, use a hand sanitizer that contains at least
60% alcohol. Cover your mouth and nose when coughing or sneezing with a tissue or the inside
of your elbow.

Employees, students and visitors must follow additional prevention guidelines provided by
the CDC: Avoid touching your face; your eyes, nose, and mouth are common entry points for
germs. Clean and disinfect frequently touched objects and surfaces.

Do your part to contain the spread.

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




From: .

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 7:14 PM

To: Kimber! i

Cc %

Subject: For Review/Approval: Revised Negative Test Result Comm
Attachments: Employee AND Student_NegativeTestComm_081820_v3.docx

# This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments
from external sources.

Hey Kim — thanks for chatting this evening!

See attached for the revised negative test result communication that we discussed tonight. Once we have your approval,
we will send on to Jen’s team @

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
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Vault Health COVID-19 Test: Inconclusive Test Result

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

e The UW COVID Hotline will help you coordinate a second COVID-19 test
through Vault Health, UW Student Health Services, or your local healthcare
provider.

e Work with a representative from the COVID Hotline on next steps for contact
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
proper steps to limit the spread of COVID-19 on UW'’s campus.

We thank you for your help in making this a great semester!

Sincerely,
The UW COVID Response Team




From: Eric Bennett Webb

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 7:30 PM
To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Cc: Jamison Marie Miller;Rian Rabideau
Subject: Re: Cancelled contract

Kim,

The numbers from Jami are for the week. The number | had was the number from lill, representing the total number of
cancelled contracts.

Eric

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 18, 2020, at 7:17 PM, Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu> wrote:

Jami and Eric,

Thank you. Eric had said something about 300+ being dropped and Ed noted that number today. | guess
I need more information on what Eric was referring to in that conversation with Tami on Monday so that
I can respond to that question. Maybe | made the timeline too tight, perhaps Eric meant contract drops
since some other timeframe.

Thanks, Kim

From: Jamison Marie Miller <Jamimill@uwyo.edu>

Date: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 at 5:23 PM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>, Eric Bennett Webb
<ewebbl@uwyo.edu>

Cc: Rian Rabideau <rrabidea@uwyo.edu>

Subject: Cancelled contract

Kim,
Below is the breakdown or reasons why for the cancelled contracts Aug 12 — Aug 16% at 10:30
am
Reason Number
Online 10
COVID Concerns 15
Live with Parents/grandparents 6
Property owned by parents/Prior University/Returner 3
Withdraw, Decline Admissions 11
Over 21 3
Total from August 12-August 18 - as of 10:30 am 48
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Please let me know if you have any questions,

Jami

Jami Miller

Director, Student Affairs Business Operations
Student Affairs

University of Wyoming

Direct 307-766-3829

<image001.jpg>
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From: Eric Bennett Webb

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 7:35 PM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Cc: Matthew E. Boyer;Mary Beth Bender;Nycole Rae Courtney;Rian Rabideau;Ryan McGarry Dinneen O'Neil;Holly Bowlds
Subject: Re: Isolation process follow up

For laundry, | spoke with Spic & Span today. They offer drop off laundry service, but the employee could not
confirm if they would be willing to offer that service in a COVID positive situation. | should hear back from the

manager tomorrow by 10:00am.

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 18, 2020, at 6:55 PM, Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu> wrote:

Friends,

I think most of us are aware that there has been a lot of feedback from our in
isolation housing and | know that we all did the best we could under the circumstances. For
those directly involved, thank you for your time and care that went well beyond any normal hours or
conditions.

At this time, there is always something to learn and the ability to refine process. After many
conversations today with parents, legislators, alumni, and colleagues here are a couple points that |
want to review with our group and some questions for some of you.

Thanks, Kim

1. Transporting students to isolation/quarantine (Q/I) housing: For the student transport this
weekend, we needed to use the pick-up truck because our health professionals said it is not
recommended to have a positive student and staff member in the same vehicle. As of this
afternoon, the limo golf cart, which provides 6 feet distancing for riders and is an open-air
vehicle, has been parked at the Residence Halls and Rian has the keys. This concern has been
resolved.

2. Housing welcome package: The apartment the student arrived in felt unwelcoming. Ryan O’Neil
has arranged to provide care packages for students that includes toiletries, snacks, and other
welcome items. Student are provided three meals a day and can request additional items as
needed. In the case from this past weekend, both RLDS and Athletics provided additional
resources. We have attended to having a welcoming component to the student’s arrival.

a. Laundry: Rian mentioned that he is taking care of that for our current student, not sure
what that process is moving forward. Let’s clarify.

b. Other ongoing needs: are we aware of other needs that we should anticipate for a
student’s week plus stay?

3. Additional testing: If a student or family requests additional testing, that is always at their
discretion. | had communicated to the student’s family that doing so was not recommended by
the CDC but could be done. The additional challenge is that this student did not have his own
transportation. | have been guided that the university should offer to provide a state health lab
test and that we should coordinate that the test get completed. We can note that it will likely
take 3+ days for results and that during that time they would need to remain in Q/I housing.
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4. Health order: WY department of health is the entity that issues the health order for individuals
to comply with Q/I housing and other appropriate limitations.

a.

While UW needs to provide immediate guidance until WY Dept. of Health is in touch, we
are not the official authority. A main message that came out of this student’s experience
was the feeling that he was a criminal and locked-up. Perception and reality vary but |
am responding to a lot of perception today and welcome us getting a clear message to
our students. We had a script that Rian was working from in doing the transport. Do
we need to edit that?

There were also questions about the student leaving the state. Senator Rothfuss talked
with Dr. Harrist today and she offered that if a family wanted to take their student out
of the state, they should notify WY Dept. of Health and they will then notify the
receiving state. | was apparently too restrictive when noting that the student would be
in violation of the order if they left the state and therefore should not.

5. Ongoing care: My current understanding is that Holly, or Dr. Boyer for athletes, will call students
in housing each day to check-in on their health status. Is this correct? Should students mention a
mental health concern, they will be referred appropriately to support on campus within athletics
or more broadly for non-athletes.
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From: [

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 7:57 PM
To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich
Subject: EEPG tomorrow

# This message was sent from a non-UWYO address. Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments
from external sources.

Kim —
For EEPG tomorrow, would you be ready to discuss fees? (Tara suggested you have thoughts on this). We can shift to

Thursday if you prefer.
And, we’ll cover the communications for the week (so excited to see this moving forward).

Thanks!

- Discussion of fee changes (Kim)
o Time frame?
o Which fees?
= Program fees
= Distance fees
=  Mandatory fees

- Campus Communication efforts week of 8.17.2020 (Kim and Chad)

o Town hall meetings
= Who will facilitate the staff town hall?
= (Staff meeting) does the President need to approve staff to have a release hour?
= Town Halls Topics — include recent policies (transportation, visitor, absence)

o COVID Pass —timing of communion

Please consider the environment before printing.

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 11:10 AM

To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Subject: Slides for Staff Briefing 20 Aug 2020_draft2.pptx
Attachments: Slides for Staff Briefing 20 Aug 2020_draft2.pptx
Hi Kim,

Draft #2 attached. It's now much more polished.

Questions for you:
e What other topics should we include? Visitor policy? Transportation policy? Daily dashboard? Quarantine

situation?
Do you have any slides to insert? | can develop them if you provide the material.

What slides would you like to speak to?
Anyone else joining us for Q&A? Thus far, in addition to us, | have Tara, Will, and Brant. Not sure about Tami.

TK
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Hosts: Kim Chestnut Steich & Tom Koczara



STAFF BRIEFING Expectations

Expectations for all Employees

* Wearing of Masks: A face mask is a cloth shield that covers both the nose and mouth. UW employees and students are required to

wear face coverings while on UW-owned property or when conducting university business or activities, including instruction and
research. This includes outdoor spaces.

» Appropriate Social Distancing: Offices, workspaces, classrooms and laboratories will be arranged in such a way to keep adequate
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

* Pre-Return Testing and Training: All employees must complete a pre-return COVID test and mandatory training before they return
to campus for the start of fall 2020 semester.

« CovidPass: Once the tool is implemented, all employees will be required to log their health status with CovidPass. Depending on
the answers, the tools will clear them to attend work or will advise them to stay at home. Each person is responsible for utilizing
health monitoring tools daily.

* Reporting Symptoms: You are required to immediately report any symptoms that might indicate COVID-19.

* Travel: You should carefully consider the consequences of non-essential personal travel on the UW community.

*UNIVER‘SIT\L w WYOMING



STAFEBRIEFING :

Phased Approach to Fall 2020 Re-Opening
The Board of Trustees approved the following adjustments to UW’s Fall 2020 reopening plans

\' Phased Approach

# of Students: 1,500

All classes online

No additional students on
campus

Remote work where possible

Testing for students and
employees who must remain on
campus

i*ﬂmv&ksrryu WYOMING

Some stud:
‘classes begin

Face-to-face critical employees
return to campus

Weekly random sampling testing
program

Phase 3: Sept 28 — Nov 20

All Students on Campus

All students return for 8 full
weeks of face-to-face instruction

Increased campus employees,
but continued work for home
where possible

Surveillance testing program

Phase 4: Nov 23 —Dec 11

All Students Onlineg

Al classes and final exams switch:
to remote delivery

Employees continue working as
per staffing plan

Testing based on disease
prevalence




STAFF BRIEFING Phased Approach

Phased Approach - Impact on Your Return Date

Based on this, when do | need to come back to campus?

* Talk to your supervisor

* Based on when you’re needed on campus to support Fall semester:
* Phasel: All classes online
* Phase ll: More students on campus; some face-to-face instruction
* Phase lll: All students on campus
e Phase IV: 100% remote delivery

|
i
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STAFF BRIEFING

Phased Approach - Impact on Taking Vault Test

Do | still need to take my Vault test?

Already taken test -> done

Have test ‘in hand’ -> complete test one
week before return to campus

Haven’t ordered test AND can socially
distance at work (any phase) -> Do not take
(repurpose)

Haven’t ordered test BUT cannot socially
distance at work:

e Phases | & II: complete one week before return to
campus

* Phase lll: Do not take (repurpose)

ﬁLIMVERNTV. - W YOMING

Vault Testing
FOR-EMPLOYEESK
Populstionn Return-to- Pre-Retum-COVID-19-Test§
Campus-Datesy _(veult-Testj

Phase-19 Aug24™— If-you-are-ableto-completely-socially-distance-while-

Employees-returningto: Sept4™e on-campus:(e.g.-work-in-a-private-office-without-

campuswho-are-able-to: contact-with-others)you-do-not-needto-completethe-

socially-distance-themselvesit VAULT-test.t

Phase-14 Aug24™— ¥f-yourexpect-ta-be-onUW-property,-or-on-Uw-

Employees-returning to- Septa™* business-{and-are-unable-to-socially-distance-at-all-

campus-who-are-not-ableto- times)through-the-September-25th,-please.complete-

soclafly-distance-themselvesit the-VAULTtest,-Ideally-a-week-beforewou-returnto-
campus.If-you-have-completed the-test,youdonot:
need-to-retest.t

Phase-29 Sept-7t— -yowareable:to-completely-sodially-distance-while-

Employees-returning-to- Sept-25'"hu on-campus-{e.g..work:n-a-private-office-without

campus-who-are:ableto- contact-with-others)you<io-not-needto-complete-the:

tally-distance-th jvesit VAULTtesty

Phase-2q Sept7™— If-you-expect-to-be-onUW-property,-oron-Uw-

Employees-returning to- Sept-25™31 business-{and-are-unableto-socially-distance-atli-

campus-whoarenot-ahleto- times)through-the-September-25th,-please-complete.

socially-distancethemselvesi the-VAULTtest,ideally-a-week-before-you-return-to-
campus.{fyourhave-completed-the-test,you-donot:
needto-retestn

Phase-3Employeesg Sept-28™- | If.yourhave-already-received-yournegative-test:

Allemployees-welcomed-to- | Nov.20™* results,-no-further-action-is-required.if-you-already-

campusit have-a-test-kit-in-hand,you-should-hold-onto-your-test.
kit-and-take-it-oneweek-priortoyour-amival.if-you-
have-not-ordered-a-test-kit,-no-further-action-is-
required.it

Remote-Employees:q N/AR You-are-not-required-to-complete-the-Pre-Return-

Remote-employees-include- COVID-19-Vault-Test. .1t ’

ali-employees-who-planto-
workfrom-home-and-will-
NOT-returnto-campus-at-any-
time<during-the-semester




STAFF BRIEFING

CovidPass
To be implemented on Monday, August 24,

T — COVID Pass

All employees must log their health status with Covid Pass before coming to campus each day.

Covid-19 Home

CovidPass

UW Faculty, Staff & Students

ﬂ LINIVERSITV s WYOMING

What Do | Need to Do Each Day?
*  Only required when visiting campus or
conducting University business or activities
*  Take temperature
* Navigate to site and answer questions
* Pass: Done
*  Fail —=> Do the following:
e Stay off campus & self-isolate

® i H COVID Hotline:
Not!fy supervisor . COVID19@uwyo.edu
* Notify COVID Hotline  (307) 766-COVD

* Contact health care provider
. Remote work or recuperate/ELWP



2 . STAFF.‘BR|EF1N.GH » S o . e e T —— I — e —— supe’,viSOr Learning Plan =
Return To Campus Supervisor Learning Plan
HR is developing a learning plan for our supervisors, to promote effective team management in COVID environment
Will Include:
 How to... LEARN l NG
* Need to know...
* Whatdol doiwhen... LEARNING LEARNING
* Tips
* Best practices
Easy-to-consume format
Responsive to rapidly cha'ng'ingr environment



STAFF BRIEFING

e 53

New Resources from HR

HR Resources

Human Resources developed several new resources since the Employee Town Hall meeting on 3 Aug 2020.

s

*L]W | AZDIRECTORY Scacch

HUMAN RESOURCES

Welcome to Human Resources

1In Human Resources, we strive ta provide the best customer service and take pride in helping the campus community and its affiliates with compassion, integrity and

strive to maintain the utmost confidentiality. The Human Resources Department’s mission is to serve as the primary human unit-for the. University of
Wyoming providing and continuously improving services for employees, , retiress, appl departments and external agencies; thus enabling the University
to serve the people of the State of Wyoming.

" % el

Appointments required before visiting
HR and Payroll

Providing a healthy and safe campus environment is the tap priority for the
University of Wyoming, particufarly during the conti COVID-19 p ic. We
ara limiting access to our Human Resources and Payroll offices, and ask that you
please call HR at 766-2377, or Payroll at 766-2217 for assistance. Plgase visit
our onfine schaduling ink to set up an appointwent tu complats a Form 1-9. We
thank you far your understanding.

anic 3 tic

Please visi ' official page for COVID-19 co an for extra informatio
COVID-19 Employee Resource Pag
now available

For HR related questions conceming COVID-19, we ask. that you visit the
COVID- 19 Employee Resource Page.

$ UNIVERSIT Vs WYOMING

Policy Exceptions &
Accommodations

Reporting Concerning Behavior
Contingent Staffing Guidelines
Remote work & high risk
Requesting eFLMA

Campus & County Resources
EAP

Wellness Center

Mental Health Resources

Links to UW COVID sites

More coming...



STAFF BRIEFING

Urgent Need to Fill COVID-Related Positions
UW’s Fall 2020 Reopening Plan is dependent upon filling numerous positions ASAP

* Registered Nurse (F/T, P/T)

¢ Nurse Practitioner

atuw

Open Positions

4 HUMAN RESOURCES HOME

* Supervisor of Sampling Operations = — HUMAN RESOURCES

« Sampling Station Supervisor :::;::ﬂm )

» Sampling Station Attendant J—— Fn"gﬁr"hsﬁﬁ'bft"um EMPLOVEES ™

* Lab Tech PR | * | K

* COVID Hub Supervisor st | g st { i
e ¥ : ,

* COVID Hub Staff
* Contact Tracer
* Institutional Marketing

e Custodian

1 TALENT ACOUISTTION

WHERE DOES HR POST J0BS

RECRUITER RESPONSIBILITY BY
DEPARTMENT

SKILLSURVEY INFORMATION

VETERAN PREFERENCE

Talent Acquisition

The Talent Acquisition team of the Human Resources Department is here to assist you with all of your hiring and
personnel questions. We handle the'ateps in the full life cycls from advertising to the end of employment for Classified
Staff and Non-Benefitad employees. Please do not hegitate to-call our friendly staff for any questions.or stop by our
offices, located in Hill Hall room 327. Are you ¥ New Empivyed?  Find Helpfl information on our Naw Employees paget

The main goal of our Talent Acquisition team ig td.help you attract, assess and hire worid-class talant that wil dnva

the success of tha University of Wyoming. ‘You depend on us. for accurate,

and timely. candid:

to make critical hiring decisions. With. thiz responsibility in mind, we're proud to announce the launch of Skillsurvey

Referencs, our new on-fine reference chacldng tool.

This rvice provides more sopi i ion while 0 the burden of performing refarence checks
from you, With m launch of this program, you will see new mformabon and reports about your candidates that will
. Oth . E-VERIFY help you as a hiring manager make bettar hirfing dacisions.
e r S Com ’ n g see on— As always, we remain committed to helping you gh the to find the best available talent. To

*LlNIViRS'TVH WVOMING

{eam more about this new todl, please go'to our Refersnia ﬁllckswebs“:a
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STAFF BRIEFING - Smmuane —

Key Dates

¢ Move-in week: August 17th — 213t

* First day of classes: August 24t

* Reopening Plan - Phase I: August 24t — September 6th
» Last day to add, change sections or change grading options in semester courses: August 27t
« Last day to drop semester courses: September 2

« Labor Day: September 7t — now an instructional day

* Reopening Plan - Phase Il: September 7th — 25th

* Reopening Plan - Phase lll: September 28th~November 20th
* Last day of in-person classes: November 20t

* Reopening Plan - Phase IV: November 23 — December 11th
* Last day of all classes: December 4th

* Finals week: December 7th - 11th

ﬂUNIVERSITVw WVOMING

Key Dates

R
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What Questions Do You Have?

Panel Includes:

Kim Chestnut Steich
Tom Koczara
Brant Schumaker
Will Laegreid
Tara Evans

Q&A

I —————————




From: James Wheeler

Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 11:50 AM
To: Kimberly Chestnut Steich

Ce: Tom Koczara;Chad R. Baldwin

Subject: Re: Staff Townhall Q & A

Kim,

| would love to partner on this. | have a 2pm meeting this afternoon, a 10am and a 1pm meeting tomorrow. Let me
know when works for you to connect prior.

Best,

James

From: Kimberly Chestnut Steich <k.chestnut@uwyo.edu>

Date: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 at 4:14 PM

To: James W<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>